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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
United Venture Investment Limited (formerly known as GLORY
MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED) (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

To Our Shareholders,

I would like to present to the shareholders the annual report
of China United Venture Investment Limited (formerly known
as GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED) and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”
or “Year 2021”).

In 2021, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$339.3 million, representing an increase of approximately
15.9% as compared to 2020. This year, the Group recorded a
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$49.7 million (2020: loss of HK$5.1 million (re-presented)).

Our electronics business recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$317.2 million (2020: approximately HK$261.6 million) in
the year ended 31 December 2021, representing an increase
of approximately 21.3% as comparing to the year ended
31 December 2020. This business segment was affected
by the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic globally which
has imposed adverse impact on the consumer demand for
electronic products globally and the Group’s production
capacity and efficiency in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”). Amidst a long, uneven and uncertain recovery to
pre-pandemic situation from the COVID-19, the Directors
continue to implement effective strategies to increase our sales
order and revenue and achieved a promising result for the Year.

The master-planning and architectural design business
recorded revenue of approximately HK$22.0 million during
the Year (2020: approximately HK$31.1 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 29.2% as compared with 2020.
During PY2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 caused suspension
of our design projects in the PRC. The PRC real estates market
is affected by the aftermath of COVID-19 pandemic. On top of
an observed slow recovery from COVID-19, this segment is also
affected by the crises experienced by its customers’, the China
real estate developers’, high debt level and liquidity issues.
The Directors are monitoring the issues closely and remaining
cautiously optimistic to the results of the Architectural Design
Business in the future.

The financial position of the Group remains strong. As at
31 December 2021, the Group had net current assets, cash
and bank balances and equity attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$116.3 million,
HK$84.1 million and HK$173.1 million.
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While our business model continue to be affected by the
outbreak of COVID-19 in 2022, the Directors continue execute
business plans implemented in 2021 to foster growth in both
business segmentations in 2022:

The Electronics Business

(i) close communication with customers and suppliers in
order to sustain the overall profitability of the Electronics
Business

(ii) venture on the expansion and commencement of the
multi-faceted initiatives should the macro-economy
condition stablised and opportunities materialize

(ifi) explore any potential business or investment
opportunities in the fields of electronic gaming, medical,
finance and technology

(iv) develop cross-border venture investment and fund
management business with a view to promoting science
park, intellectual properties rights and related advanced
technology in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area

The Architectural Design Business

(i) continue strengthening our new services, a living
aesthetic consulting service which combined interior
design-based services and sales of electronic interior
accessories

(i) promote the development of the Group’s design services
and achieve mutual benefits with strategic cooperation
partnership in digital cultural industry

The Directors remain confident and optimistic towards the
results of the Group in the coming year while facing challenges
and uncertainty in the market.

Taking this opportunity, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all our customers, suppliers, business partners,
employees and shareholders for their continuous and valuable
supports to the Group. | shall lead my team to persist with the
best endeavours in striving for optimal development for the
Group and returns for our shareholders in the times to come.

Huang Bin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmL KD

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in electronic business and
architectural design business. In the electronic business,
the Group designs, manufactures and sells connectivity
products mainly for computers, computer peripheral products,
mobile phones peripheral products, multi-media consumable
electronic products, communication products, automobile
electronics accessories, wire harness and medical equipment
(the “Electronics Business”). In the architectural design
business, the Group focuses on master-planning work, general
design work and architectural schematic design work (the
“Architectural Design Business”).

On 16 June 2021, the Group entered into an agreement with
Shenzhen Hengguan, an independent third party, to sell the
entire equity interest in a subsidiary of the Group in the PRC
at a consideration of RMB101,000,000. The Group obtained
its shareholders’ approval on 20 October 2021 via a resolution
at a special general meeting and the said subsidiary (“DAL”)
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company then. The following
management discussion and analysis mainly focuses on our
Continuing Operations. DAL is classified as Discontinued
Operation and presented separately as a single line item.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue
The Electronics Business

During year ended 31 December 2020 (the “PY2020”), the
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic globally has imposed
adverse impact on the consumer demand for electronic
products globally and the Group’s production capacity and
efficiency in the PRC. Amidst a long, uneven and uncertain
recovery to pre-pandemic situation from the COVID-19, the
Directors continue to implement effective strategies to increase
our sales order and revenue and achieved a promising result
for the Year. This business segment contributed revenue of
approximately HK$317.2 million to the Group during the Year
(PY2020: approximately HK$261.6 million), representing an
increase of approximately 21.3% as compared with PY2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Architectural Design Business

During PY2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 caused suspension
of our design projects in the PRC. With the PRC real estates
market being affected by the aftermath of COVID-19 pandemic,
this business segment contributed revenue of approximately
HK$22.0 million during the Year (PY2020: approximately
HK$31.1 million), representing a decrease of approximately
29.2% as compared with PY2020. On top of an observed slow
recovery from COVID-19, this segment is also affected by the
crises experienced by its customers’, the China real estate
developers’, high debt level and liquidity issues. The Directors
are monitoring the issues closely and remaining cautiously
optimistic to the results of the Architectural Design Business in
the future.

The Group recorded a total turnover of approximately HK$339.3
million for the Year (PY2020: approximately HK$292.7 million),
representing an increase of approximately 15.9% as compared
with PY2020.

Gross profit

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$21.0
million for the Year, representing a decrease of approximately
54.9% as compared to approximately HK$46.6 million for
PY2020 (re-presented). This was mainly attributable to the
global supply chain disruption and surge in raw material prices
for our Electronics Business. The gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 15.9% (re-presented) for PY2020 to
approximately 6.2% for the Year.

Other income

The Group earned other income of approximately HK$4.7
million during the Year (PY2020: approximately HK$5.3 million
(re-presented) or approximately HK$8.4 million (audited)).
There was a slight decrease in rental income received and
government subsidies for the Year as compared to PY2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEmAL R DM

Other gains and losses and material disposal of subsidiary

On 16 June 2021, the Group entered into an agreement with
Shenzhen Hengguan, an independent third party, the entire
equity interest of DAL at a consideration of RMB101,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$122,210,000). The results
attributable to the production lines of DAL for the period
between 1 January 2021 to 20 October 2021, have been
presented separately, in the unaudited consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
obtained its shareholders’ approval on 20 October 2021 via a
resolution at a special general meeting. Accordingly, a gain on
the said disposal transaction of approximately HK$90.0 million
was recorded in other gains and losses.

Saved as disclosed above, there were no other material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the Year.

Finance costs

During the Year, as the Group raised new borrowings for
working capital, the Group recorded interest expenses of
approximately HK$0.9 million (PY2020: Nil). The remaining
finance costs represent the interest expense on lease liabilities
incurred and an increase was noted during the year ended
31 December 2021 as a result of the new right-of-use assets
recognised following the completion of the above transaction.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses were approximately
HK$8.5 million for the Year (PY2020: approximately HK$6.0
million (re-presented)), increased by 41.7%, which was mainly
attributable to the expenses incurred for operating the online
stores and additional marketing efforts used to boost sales.
Such efforts have come to fruition as evidenced by the increase
in revenue in the Electronic Business during Year compared to
PY2020.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses were approximately HK$67.9
million for the Year (PY2020: approximately HK$46.0 million
(re-presented)), representing an increase of approximately
47.5%. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in professional expenses incurred for financing
activities, corporate action in relation to the very substantial
disposal transaction in the fourth quarter of the Year, and
certain corporate restructuring activities in Taiwan, despite
management continuous attention on overhead cost control.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Significant Investment

During the Year, the Group did not have any significant
investments (2020: Nil).

Income tax expenses

The Group recorded an income tax expenses of approximately
HK$3.1 million for the Year (PY2020: HK$1.2 million (re-
presented)).

Net profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company

The Group reported a net profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the Year of approximately HK$49.7 million
(PY2020: net loss of approximately HK$5.1 million (re-
presented)), increased by approximately 10.7 times. This was
mainly attributable to gain on disposal but partially offset by
the significant reduction in our gross margin arising from the
global supply chain disruption, particularly on the IC Chips
components on our electronic products, and surge in raw
material prices, particularly in copper price.

Earnings/loss per share

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the Year was
approximately HK$7.1 cents (PY2020: basic and diluted losses
per share approximately HK$0.67 cents (re-presented)).

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net current assets,
cash and bank balances and equity attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to approximately HK$116.3 million,
HK$84.1 million and HK$173.1 million (2020: approximately
HK$55.4 million, HK$56.4 million and HK$133.7 million)
respectively. The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December
2021, expressed as current assets over current liabilities,
was maintained at the level of approximately 1.52 (2020:
approximately 1.45).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio was
approximately 1.41, increased from the gearing ratio of
approximately 0.94 as at 31 December 2020. The gearing ratio
is derived by dividing total liabilities (including but not limited to
interest-bearing borrowings, trade payables and other payables
and accruals) by total capital (including but not limited to equity
attributable to owners of the parent company) at the end of the
respective years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEmAL R DM

Debts and Charge on Assets

During the Year, the Group raised new borrowings, in the form
of bank loans and unsecured borrowings for working capital
replenishment. As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding
amount was approximately HK$51.7 million. The Group
pledged its investment properties in Hong Kong and certain
property and plant in the PRC held for use in the production
and supply of goods, to secure the bank loans granted to the
Group. Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no
other assets of the Group were charged. The Group had no
interest-bearing debt nor any asset pledged as at 31 December
2020.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

The Directors currently do not have any future plans for material
investments or capital assets and will continue to monitor the
industry and review its business expansion plans regularly, so
as to take necessary measures in the Group’s interests.

Use of Proceeds from Placing

On 3 June 2020, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with VMI Securities
Limited (the “Placing Agent”) pursuant to which the Placing
Agent has conditionally agreed to procure on a best effort basis
not less than six placess (the “Placees”) to subscribe for up to
64,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company (the “Placing
Share(s)”) at the placing price (the “Placing Price”) of HK$0.1
per Placing Share (the “Placing”). The Placing Price of HK$0.1
represents a discount of approximately 3.85% to the closing
price of HK$0.104 per share of the Company as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 3 June 2020, being the date of the Placing
Agreement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Given the financial challenges encountered by the Group amid
the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic,
the Sino-US trade war and other uncertainties and unforeseen
circumstances in the global economy, it is anticipated that the
Group’s accounts receivables will be settled much slower, the
Group’s sales order from customers will come slower, in lesser
quantity and with a lower margin. The Company intended to
apply the net proceeds from the Placing for the general working
capital of the Group.

Having considered (i) the abovementioned uncertainties in the
global economy; (i) the loss of HK$8,699,000 of the Group for
the three months ended 31 March 2020 which was attributable
to, among others, the decrease in sales revenue of the Group;
and (iii) the general working capital requirement of the Group,
the Directors considered that the Placing represents an
opportunity to raise additional fund through the equity market
as well as to broaden the capital and shareholder base of the
Company.

The Placing was completed on 22 June 2020. To the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all
reasonable enquiries, the Placees and their respective ultimate
beneficial owners are parties who are independent of, and not
connected with, the Company and its connected persons.
None of the Placees has become a substantial shareholder of
the Company as a result of the completion of the Placing. The
gross proceeds from the Placing amounted to HK$6,400,000,
and the net proceeds from the Placing, after deduction of the
placing commission and other related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$6,078,000 shall be used for general working
capital of the Group.

For details of the Placing, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 3 June 2020 and 22 June 2020.
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The use of net proceeds raised from the Placing is summarised
as follows:

RESENAEFIRFRMAEERmT

Actual amount

utilized
subsequent to
Actual 31 December Remaining
amount 2020 unutilized
utilized up to andupto balance as at
Intended Use of Actualnet 31 December 31 December 31 December
Net Proceeds FEREFENRTAR proceeds 2020 2021 2021
R-ZB-EE
t=ZA=+-H
EZ BREZ N
b g 23 b b
t+=ZA=+-HB +=ZA=t+—-R t+=A=t-H
BRFE BEREA BEREA 5 AR E A
REFEE M HEH HERER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(‘FEr) (FET) (F&r) (F&r)
Research & Development Expense 35 5; 2,978 2,978 - -
Staff salaries BT%% 100 100 — -
Purchase of raw material and EMEHREE R E S B R
other operating expenses 3,000 - 3,000 -
Total Fab 6,078 3,078 3,000 —
Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments BRI RETEE

The Group did not have material capital expenditures and
commitments as at 31 December 2021.

Foreign Exchange Risk

During the Year, most of the Group’s business transactions
were conducted in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Review of
the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risks is conducted
periodically. The Group expected that the exposure to
exchange rate fluctuation was not significant and therefore did
not engage in any hedging activity during the Year.

Capital Structure

The Company did not run any capital exercise during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK
The Electronics Business

The supply chain disruption and inflation of raw material prices
resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic has negatively impacted
the bottom line of the Electronics Business and restricting the
execution and implementation of various plans and visions,
including the geographical diversification of our production
lines and supply chains. The Directors will continue to maintain
close communication with customers and suppliers in order to
sustain the overall profitability of the Electronics Business. In
the meantime, the Directors may also venture on the expansion
and commencement of the multi-faceted initiatives should
the macro-economy condition stablised and opportunities
materialise.

Subsequent to the Year just ended, the Directors have kicked
off, among the multi-faceted plans to create shareholders’
values as disclosed in its 2020 Annual Report, the plan to
diversify into financial services industry. In the first quarter of
2022, for the purpose of harnessing the Group’s competitive
advantage and diversifying its business into financial services
industry, the Directors have invited new members to the Board
to spearhead the development of a new finance business (the
“Finance Business”). Mr. Huang Bin (“Mr. Huang”), Mr. Wu
Le Bin and Mr. Ni Xian have joined the Board, all of whom are
experienced finance professionals in asset management, fund
management, corporate advisory, private equities and venture
capital investments. In addition, as disclosed in the Company’s
business update announcement dated 4 March 2022 (the
“Announcement”), the Company has acquired from Mr. Huang
(i) the entire issued share capital of State Venture Capital
Limited (FTERRE N EGRR A A)) (“State Venture”) and (i) 70%
of the issued share capital of State Innovation Capital Limited
(FrEFEREARERAT) (“State Innovation”) at nominal
consideration, which marked the start of the Company’s
Finance Business.

As further disclosed in the Announcement, the Group, through
State Venture and State Innovation, intends to develop the
Finance Business through organic growth over acquisitions
with a view to provide full range of financial services, including
but not limited to fund issuance, asset management, distressed
asset management and insurance brokerage, etc. in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The Group intends to, through the Finance
Business, develop cross-border venture investment and fund
management business with a view to promoting electronics-
related science park, intellectual properties rights and related
advanced technology in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area. The Group believes that the new Finance
Business will provide an additional income source for the Group
and the Group will benefit from the diversified return in future.
Further announcement(s) in respect of any new developments
of the Finance Business will be made by the Company as and
when appropriate.
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In the upcoming year 2022, the Directors will continue the
Group’s a multi-faceted plan to increase the shareholders’
value and re-invest the available resources to maximize asset
utilization and value and merger and acquisition activities and
strategic partnerships.

The Architectural Design Business

With our brilliant design products and strong marketing
channels in the PRC, the Group is in the process of
strengthening our new services, a living aesthetic consulting
service which combined interior design-based services and
sales of electronic interior accessories under our own brand
name. During the Year, we have commenced the collaboration
of the Architectural Design Business and the Electronics
Business, initial research and development on the design and
production process of the electronic accessories.

Riding on the trend of “Internet plus cultural creativity”, the
Group targets to offer a thorough one-stop integrated design
services by enhancing the Internet interactive platform with
users.

Subsequent to the Year just ended, PT Design (QH) Limited)
(“PT Design”), an indirectly wholly owned-subsidiary of
the Company, and Beiwen Times (Beijing) Culture Limited
(“Beiwen Times”) have entered into an exclusive strategic
cooperation agreement (the “Agreement”) in relation to the
establishment of a strategic cooperation partnership in digital
cultural industry in order to form industrial alliances and
achieve business synergies after extensive communication and
exchange. Beiwen Times has been involving in a number of
cultural projects located in various first- and second-tier cities
in the PRC including Beijing, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Wuhan,
Chengdu, Suzhou and Changchun. These projects, which are
either in operation or under preparation, will generally involve
investment from local cities and participation of local state-
owned enterprises. The Directors consider these projects will
warrant sufficient demand for the Group’s design services.
In addition, with the extensive resources and operation and
management experiences of Beiwen Times in the cultural
industry, the corporation under the Agreement will promote
the development of the Group’s design services and achieve
mutual benefits.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Receiving of Financial Assistance

On 4 April 2022, Goldstone Investment Management Limited,
as the lender (the “Lender”), entered into two loan agreements
(the “First Loan Agreement” and the “Second Loan
Agreement”, collectively, the “Loan Agreements”) with State
Venture Capital Limited (¥ZEEB#K & AR B R A7) as the first
borrower (the “First Borrower”) and State Innovation Capital
Limited (¥72EE R} A A~ F R A 7)) as the second borrower (the
“Second Borrower”, collectively, the “Borrowers” or each
the “Borrower”), respectively. Each of the Borrowers is a
subsidiary of the Company.

The principal terms of the Loan Agreements are summarised as

follows:

Date

Lender

Borrowers

Loan amount

Term of the loans:

Maturity date
Interest rate

Repayment

4 April 2022

Goldstone Investment Management
Limited

The First Loan Agreement: State Venture
Capital Limited

The Second Loan Agreement: State
Innovation Capital Limited

The First Loan Agreement:
HK$60,000,000

The Second Loan Agreement:
HK$18,000,000

One year, commencing from the date of
the Loan Agreements

3 April 2023 (the “Maturity Date”)
2% per annum

The Borrowers shall repay and/or settle
the full amount of the loans and the
interest accrued thereon the Maturity
Date

Unless otherwise agreed by the Lender,
all payment and repayment shall be
made by the Borrowers in immediately
available funds, without any set-off,
withholding and/or deduction
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Early repayment : The Borrowers may from the expiry
of 180 days after the date of the Loan
Agreements prepay all or part of the
loans on any business day provided
that the Borrowers shall have given the
Lender not less than ten (10) business
days’ prior written notice specifying
the proposed amount and date of
prepayment

Default interest If the Borrowers fail to repay the loans
or any part thereof or any interest, in
each case, on the due date of payment
or repayment, the Borrowers shall pay
interest on such sum from the date
immediately following such due date of
payment or repayment to the date of
actual payment (both days inclusive)(as
well after as before judgment) at 5% per

annum
Guarantee A corporate guarantee given by the

Company in favour of the Lender
Guarantee

On 4 April 2022, the Company executed a deed of guarantee
with the Lender, pursuant to which the Company shall provide a
corporate guarantee in favour of the Lender for the Borrowers’
liabilities under the Loan Agreements.

Information of the Lender

The Lender is Goldstone Investment Management Limited,
being a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong.
As at the date of this announcement, the Lender is (i) indirectly
owned as to 60% by Mr. Huang Bin (“Mr. Huang”), the non-
executive Director of the Company; and (ii) indirectly owned
as to 40% by CITIC International Assets Management
Limited (FEEIIREEEEBR A A]) (“CIAM”). CIAM is a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited (=B & /iR G R A 7).
CIAM is principally engaged in equity investment and asset
management. As Mr. Huang is a non-executive Director and
a shareholder of the Lender, hence he is a connected person
of the Company pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Information of the Borrowers

Each of the First Borrower and the Second Borrower is an
investment holding company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability. As at the date of this announcement, (i)
the First Borrower is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and (ii) the Second Borrower is an indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Board is of the view that that the Loan Agreements would
enable the Group to strengthen its working capital base
and enhance its financial position. By entering into the Loan
Agreements, the Company wishes to acquire (i) the entire share
capital of State Venture Investment (HK) Holdings Limited ([
W (EH)ERAER A T) (“State Venture”) and (i) Tianjin CIAM
Corporate Management Limited (K2 EZE XS EAR
2 @]) (“Tianjin CIAM”). By acquiring the entire share capital
of State Venture, the Company can gain access to Qingdao
Guotou Dingcheng Asset Management Company Limited*
(FEBEKRGREEEEBMRAT) (“Qingdao Guotuo”), a
company established in the PRC, which is (i) directly owned
as to 51% by State Venture; and (ii) directly owned as to 49%
by Qingdao SDIC Financial Holding Co., Ltd (& & & % &t
=& AR A 7)) (“Qingdao SDIC”), and inject RMB100 million
capital to Qingdao Quotuo. Qingdao SDIC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Qingdao International Investment Co., Ltd (5§ &
RigE AR A F) (“Qingdao International”), of which Qingdao
International is a state-owned enterprise in the PRC. Relying on
the brand image of Qingdao International and taking advantage
of its ability in raising capital and diverse project channels,
the Company wishes to establish further funds and register
for the qualified domestic limited partnership (the “QDLP”) in
the PRC with a view to exploring business opportunities in (i)
non-performing loans and (i) mergers and acquisitions in listed
companies by adopting the PIPE and PE models. Qingdao
International, a state-owned enterprise located in Qingdao,
was established in the PRC in 2003 with a registered capital
of RMB1.5 billion and total assets amounted to approximately
RMB25.0 billion. Qingdao International has invested in an
A-share company listed in the PRC and an asset management
company. The principal business activities of Qingdao
International include (i) private equity, (ii) funding, (iii) venture
capital and share capital investment, (iv) asset management
and (v) strategic investment cooperation with government
departments in the PRC.
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Through the acquisition of Tianjin CIAM, the Company wishes
to register for the qualified foreign limited partnership (the
“QFLP”) in the PRC through Zhuhai Municipal Kenggiangxin
Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (EE8 MRS EE R
ABRA7]) (“Zhuhai Kenggiangxin”), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tianjin CIAM. Coupled with the QFLP registration,
and by making use of the licence in private equity fund in the
PRC, which is held by Zhuhai Municipal Xinluanxin Equity
Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (/82X ERERE
EIE AR AT (“Zhuhai Xinluanxin®), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tianjin CIAM, the Company wishes to bring in
capital and cooperate with central enterprises that engage
in cultural tourism and other local state-owned enterprises
located in Zhuhai, Guangzhou, Chengdu and Qingdao for the
establishment of a development fund in cultural tourism in the
Greater Bay Area by adopting the PIPE and PE models. The
Company wishes to establish investment funds to promote
investment and capture the construction opportunities in
the Greater Bay Area. As at the date of this announcement,
Tianjin CIAM is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIAM Capital
Management Limited and is principally engaged in corporate
management. Zhuhai Kengqgiangxin, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tianjin CIAM, engages in investment funds and
asset management. Zhuhai Xinluanxin, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tianjin CIAM, holds the licence of private equity
fund in the PRC and is principally engaged in the management
of private equity fund.

The terms and conditions of the Loan Agreements are
negotiated between the Lender and the Borrowers on an arm’s
length basis and are on normal commercial terms. The Board
consider that the terms of the Loan Agreements are fair and
reasonable and the entering into of the Loan Agreements is in
the best interest of the Company and the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Change of Company Name

Subsequent to the passing of the special resolution approving
the change of Company name by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 29 March 2022 and the Certificate of Change of Name and
the Certificate of Secondary Name were issued by the Registrar
of Companies in Bermuda on 11 April 2022, the English name
of the Company has been changed from “GLORY MARK
HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED” to “China United Venture
Investment Limited” and “#1ZE# S & HR A7) " has been
adopted as the secondary name of the Company to replace
“yRIE R (%) AR A 7] ”. The Certificate of Registration of
Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company
was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on
28 April 2022 confirming the registration of the new name of
the Company in Hong Kong under Part XVI of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The stock
short name of the Company will be changed from “GLORY
MARK” in English and “#&/2#}# ” in Chinese to “CU VENTURE
INV” in English and “#ZFEE& 3% & ” in Chinese, for trading in
the Shares on the Stock Exchange with effect from 9:00 a.m.
on 13 May 2022. The stock code of the Company on the Stock
Exchange will remain unchanged as “8159”. Details of the
change of name of the Company were set out in the circular
of the Company dated 9 March 2022 and the announcements
of the Company dated 28 February 2022, 21 March 2022, 29
March 2022 and 6 May 2022, respectively.

BEEmAL R DM

EXLARER

KRB —F=Z A=+ NBRTZERKRARIERER
R EERNRREBBIEE RARZE 2R
RER - UERBREQFAEAMEERR =T
FUAT—HELNENLBERERE _LBE
HER - ARE 2B EZEE BAIGLORY MARK
HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED | & 2 & China
United Venture Investment Limited | - [ #rEEgst
AHREBRAGIEEBRMNERERARRZE S
T ERR[EERHL(ZER)BR AR - BT
AMEERER S __FHAZ+N\BEHE
MIERBRREELHAMBEE  BRERF
BIREE B AN FE622F N aEBIE 163 ET BT
MEF AR - ARFRORERME B 2 B3R M%
#5754 i [ GLORY MARK | 2 A CU VENTURE
INV] - WA xR B [ iR E B JE BB
EMAKRE | B —&FRA+=HLFNE
IERBAR o AR E)REE R 2 RO R 5 T
% HARI8159] - RARIERBTEMNFE DRI
RAARARRA-ZE-—F= AN BB HUA KRR
REIAMAS_—_F-_A-+)\H ZT==F
—AzZt+—H - ZEZZF=ZAZ=+NARKZZE
T HFRANRNHNRE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F#{ 2021 21



22

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEASHE

DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Li Feng (“Mr. Wang”), aged 58, was appointed
and has been an executive Director of the Group since 15
September 2016. Mr. Wang is the vice chairman of the Board,
the chairman of the executive committee and the strategy
and development committee, a member of the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee and also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He obtained a master
degree in architecture from Royal Melbourne Institute of
Technology in November 1991. Mr. Wang is also a director of
PT Design, the controlling shareholder of the Company. He
worked as the chief representative for Peddle Thorp Architects
Melbourne Asia Shenzhen Office (JELA IS5 iH)E 2 F A&
BEARLFINIKEKE) from February 1998 to January 2003. He
has been the executive director of Peddle Thorp Consultants
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd (t8/&: 0 (RYI) AR A7) since January
2003 and has been the chairman of PT Architecture Design
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (fA/&2 &R ORI BR A F])
since March 2009.

Mr. Yu Sanlong (“Mr. Yu”), aged 48, was appointed as an
executive Director on 5 December 2019. Mr. Yu is a member of
the executive committee of the Company and also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company’s electronics business.

Mr. Yu has over 25 years of experience in the electronics
industry. He has extensive experience in research and
development and manufacture of electronic products and
management of electronics companies in China, Hong Kong
and Singapore. Mr. Yu is a director and a co-founder of NIIP
Limited, which is a private company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability focusing on provision of services regarding
data encryption and password management to customers in
North America, in April 2014. Prior to co-founding NIIP Limited,
Mr. Yu worked in various multinational and listed companies,
such as International Business Machines Corporate (IBM) and
Tyco Electronics (currently known as TE Connectivity), where
he was mainly responsible for managing the research and
development and manufacture of various electronic products
for medical and automobile industries. Mr. Yu obtained a
bachelor’s degree in machinery and equipment manufacturing
engineering from Harbin Engineering University, China in July
1997.
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Mr. Fan Xiaoling (“Mr. Fan”), aged 36, was appointed as an
executive Director on 5 December 2019. He is a member of the
executive committee and also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company’s electronics business.

Mr. Fan has over 14 years of experience in the electronics
industry. He has strong abilities of supply chain strategy,
sales and operation planning, demand planning, forecasting
development, quality management, logistics management
and project management. He has extensive and successful
experiences in North America, South East Asia, Finland,
Germany, Brazil, Mexico, and United Kingdom market. He
is the director of supply chain management of LTL Group,
LLC., where he is mainly responsible for the supply chain
management of semi-conductors and electronic products.

Mr. Fan obtained a Bachelor of Finance degree from East China
Jiaotong University, China in June 2008.

Dr. Chen Xiaofeng (“Dr. Chen”), aged 32, was appointed as an
executive Director on 17 February 2022.

Dr. Chen is a director and a founder of Darelove Technology
Limited, the chief scientist and legal adviser of Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Center for Hong Kong and Macao Youth in
Shenzhen North Railway Station (ZE3I|4b k8 & 4 8 #7 8l %
/.0y ), Senior Consultant of Guangdong Menghai Law Firm,
etc. He has extensive experiences in policy, legal, strategic
research and senior executive management. Also, Dr. Chen
is a member of Chinese Association of Hong Kong & Macao
Studies (& B R 7€), a member of the council of Hong
Kong Basic Law and Macau Basic Law Research Association
of China Law Society, Vice President of Hong Kong Basic Law
Education Association, a visiting professor of Guangxi Nanning
Normal University, guest researcher of The Center for Basic
Laws of Hong Kong and Macau Special Administrative Regions
in Shenzhen University, etc.
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For public services in Hong Kong, Dr. Chen is a member of
the election committee of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, a panel member of the Municipal Services Appeals
Board under Chief Secretary for Administration’s office, a
member of Standing Committee on STEM Education of
Curriculum Development Council of Education Bureau, etc.

For public services in Mainland China, Dr. Chen is a Committee
Member of the All-China Youth Federation, a consultant to
the Committee for Liaison with Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan
and Overseas Chinese of the Beijing Municipal Committee of
CPPCC (4t = H#%), an expert of “talent pool” of research
for laws of Hong Kong and Macao (Z &8 8258 A A E) in
developing Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area of
Guangdong Province Law Society, etc. Dr. Chen was awarded
Ten Outstanding New Hong Kong Youth Elites (+ X£tH#H &5
#E 1) in 2018 and Overseas High-Caliber Personnel (Peacock
Plan) of Shenzhen (YT /@5 & ERAA (FLE£AZ)) in 2019 -

Dr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in laws from Shenzhen
University, Master of Laws in International Economic Law and
Doctor of Juridical Science in law from City University of Hong
Kong.

Mr. Ni Xian (“Mr. Ni”), aged 36, was appointed as an executive
Director on 4 March 2022.

Mr. Ni graduated from Northwest University of Political Science
and Law (7t BUA K E) with a bachelor’s degree in legal
English in 2008. He subsequently obtained a master’s degree in
Law from the Law School of Huagiao University (ZEEAE) in
2011.

Mr. Ni has assisted companies in making public offerings and
seeking listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
has accumulated working experience in a number of well-
known financial advisory companies. He passed the National
Judicial Examination in the PRC, the Test for English Majors —
Band 8, and the Fund Qualification Examination. He has the
experience in corporate investment and financing, corporate
governance and financial management.
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Mr. Ni acted as the President Assistant of Pa Shun International
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 574), where he was responsible
for making assessments on acquisitions and investment
projects, conducting due diligence investigations on finance,
business and legal issues, assisting in completing the IPO of
Pa Shun International Holdings Limited in June 2015, assisting
in monitoring the progress of projects and financial position of
projects, and assisting the Chief Executive Officer in developing
the long-medium term development strategies and dealing with
the relationships with investors.

From 31 December 2020 to 4 December 2021, Mr. Ni was an
executive director of Lamtex Holdings Limited (in liquidation)
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 1041).

Mr. Su Guang (“Mr. Su”), aged 42, was appointed as an
executive Director and the chief executive of the Company
since 1 May 2022.

Mr. Su obtained a Master of Science Degree in Financial
Analysis from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in June 2012. Mr. Su served as deputy
commissioner (deputy department head of the group) for
the office of deepening reform of Everbright Group, and the
general manager of Everbright Belt & Road Green Fund and the
managing director of the Technology Investment Fund* (£}
& E %) from February 2020 to April 2022. Mr. Su served as
executive vice president and director of the shipping finance
business department of COSCO SHIPPING Financial Holdings
Co., Limited, and the chairman of Oriental Power Inc Limited
and the chairman of COSCO SHIPPING (Tianjin) Financial
Leasing C., Limited* (i /8@ 3R (K)2) g EHE A a)) from
February 2017 to January 2020. Mr. Su has served as director
of COSCO SHIPPING Development (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd,
since 30 March 2018. Mr. Su was vice president of the asset
management department of the headquarters of Ping An Bank
Co., Ltd. (“Ping An Bank”) (whose shares are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000001)) from February
2016 to November 2016, and is also a vice chief representative
of Ping An Bank’s representative office in Hong Kong. Before
that, Mr. Su was the managing director and head of cross
border structured finance department of ICBC International
Holdings Limited, which is wholly-owned by Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1398) and on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601398), and was
mainly in charge of equity investment as well as cross-border
structured investments and financing business. Mr. Su served
as a director and the chairman of the Risk Control Committee
of Genertec Universal Medical Group Company Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2666) from December 2012 to April 2021.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Huang Bin (“Mr. Huang”), aged 56, was appointed as
non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board on 20
February 2022. Mr. Huang is the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company.

Mr. Huang is currently a director of CITIC International Assets
Management Limited (F{ZBIREEEIEFE 2 7]) and a non-
executive director and co-chairman of China New Economy
Fund Limited (1 B34 %1% E B R A 5) (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 80),
respectively. He also has extensive professional experience
in fund and asset management as well as investment banking
and direct investments. Mr. Huang committed to contributing in
China for years, including development in cross-border energy,
resource mergers and acquisitions, and promoting energy
output and international engineering. Mr. Huang previously
joined CITIC Securities ({3 %) and established CITIC
Merchant Enterprise Management Limited (BB EEIR A
f2 /A al), which is driven by specific projects and supported by
market-oriented operation to identify a unique business model
that integrates investment businesses with comprehensive
financing services, thereby providing international corporate
clients with comprehensive solutions.

After years of experience in working abroad and as a visiting
scholar, such as Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment
Bank in France, Yaxin Finance in Hong Kong and subsidiaries
of Scoita Capital in Canada, Mr. Huang joined the Chinese
General Chamber of Commerce (HE+H &) and
initiated the formation of Guangdong-Hongkong-Macao Bay
Area Entrepreneurs Union (B &R A &R D EKEE). He is
the executive vice chairman of the Union and in charge of
technology and financial sector as well. Mr. Huang graduated
from Harbin Engineering University, and subsequently received
the training from the European Economic Community Visiting
Scholars Program and the business management training from
Northwestern University in the United States.

From 19 March 2020 to 2 December 2021, Mr. Huang was a
non-executive director and the chairman of Lamtex Holdings
Limited (#riZEIERZ AR A A]) (in liquidation) (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1041).
From 3 September 2019 to 16 October 2020, Mr. Huang was
an executive director of GTI Holdings Limited (XZ&£BEHRE A
&]) (in liquidation) (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 3344).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fong Chi Wai, Alex (“Dr. Fong”), aged 65, was appointed
and has been an independent non-executive Director of the
Group since 10 January 2019. He is a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination
committee, the executive committee and the strategy and
development committee. He is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice to the Board.

Dr. Fong and he is currently a director of HK Electric
Investments Manager Limited and a director of The Hongkong
Electric Company, Limited. Dr. Fong was the chief executive
officer of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce (the
“Chamber”) from September 2006 to August 2011. Prior to
joining the Chamber, he served in the civil service for over
25 years, holding various senior positions in the Government
of Hong Kong. Dr. Fong has a long record of public service
providing both operational and policy-formulation expertise.
Dr. Fong has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of HK Electric Investments and HK Electric Investments
Limited, a company listed on the Exchange (stock code: 2638)
since December 2013 and an independent non-executive
director of TOM Group Limited, a company listed on the
Exchange (stock code: 2383) since December 2019. He was an
independent non-executive director of Power Assets Holdings
Ltd., a company listed on the Exchange (stock code: 6) and
a substantial holder of Share Stapled Units for the purpose of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) from December 2012 to
January 2014.

Dr. Fong received a Bachelor of Social Science degree in
Business and Economics from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1978, a Master of Technology Management degree
in Global Logistics Management and a Master of Science
degree in Global Finance from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology in April 2007 and May 2009
respectively, a Doctor of Business Administration degree from
City University of Hong Kong in October 2017 and a Doctor
of Philosophy degree from City University of Hong Kong in
October 2020.
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Dr. Yan Ka Shing (“Dr. Yan”), aged 36, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Group since 5
December 2019. Dr. Yan is the chairman of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee, and a member of the strategy
and development committee, the executive committee and the
nomination committee, where he is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice to the Board.

Dr. Yan has nearly 11 years of experience in the medical
industry and has been employed by the Hospital Authority
since July 2011. He completed his housemanship in the
Hospital Authority from July 2011 to June 2012. He then
became a registered doctor and has served as a medical officer
in various hospitals managed by the Hospital Authority in Hong
Kong, since July 2012.

Dr. Yan obtained his Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of
Surgery (MBBS) degree from the University of Hong Kong in
November 2011, the Membership of the Royal Colleges of
Physicians of the United Kingdom (MRCP (UK)), a postgraduate
medical diploma in the United Kingdom, in March 2016, and
the Postgraduate Diploma in Infectious Diseases from the
University of Hong Kong (PDipID (HK)) in October 2019. He
was admitted as a member of the Hong Kong College of
Physicians in January 2017, then became Fellow and Specialist
in Endocrinology, Diabetes and Metabolism, and has held
fellowships from the Hong Kong College of Physicians and the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (Medicine), since September
2020 and December 2020, respectively. Also, he has been
a member of the Hong Kong Medical Association since July
2011.

Dr. Yan was appointed as an independent non-executive
director, the chairman of nomination committee, a member of
the audit committee and remuneration committee of Victory
Securities (Holdings) Company Limited (stock code: 8540.HK),
since 14 June 2018.

Dr. Yan was appointed as an independent non-executive
director, the member of the audit committee, the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of Comtec Solar
Systems Group Limited (stock code: 712), since 1 July 2021.
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Mr. Wu Lebin (“Mr. Wu”), aged 60, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director on 20 February 2022.

Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor’s degree in medicine, a master’s
degree in science (life science) and completed an EMBA study
program.

Mr. Wu is the chairman of the board of director of CAS Venture
Capital Investment Management Co., Ltd. (AR AIEKREE
B PR /A 7)), the chairman of the board of director of Hui Xin
Fund Management Company Limited (B E S EHE AR A7),
the chairman of the board of director of New Journey Hospital
Group (¥TEFREM%E), the chairman and an executive
director of Biosino Bio-technology And Science Incorporation®
(AL EEYRIERMD AR AT (@ company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8247), a researcher of
Institute of Biophysics, Chinese Academy of Sciences, a vice
president of China Entrepreneur Club. He was the chairman of
the board of director of Chinese Academy of Sciences Holdings
Co, Ltd. (AR ERIEZIZRBR A F]), a committee officer of
National Planning Committee (1% 51 £|Z% & € ), National
Economic and Trade Commission (B2 4 & % ), Technology
for Boosting Economy Commission of Chinese Academy of
Sciences. Mr. Wu was a non-executive director of Legend
Holdings Corporation (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3396) during September 2014
to June 2021.

Mr. Wu committed to technology management for years, and he
have been focusing on researching of transformation of major
scientific and technological achievements. Mr. Wu participated
in the research and development of National Basic Research
Climbing Project (B xR M55 2 & 512, former Programme
973). He also participated in development of National Marine
Advanced Technology Development Program and the research
of development strategy of Chinese Academy of Sciences. Mr.
Wau is the author of books about technology management, for
example, Two Dynamics Theory of Human Social Development
(ANfErt & 3R — 8 /%), and R&D and the Driving Force of
Enterprises — Technology R&D and Case Studies of Famous
Enterprises in China and Overseas (R&D Ed{p 3 R &) Jj — o)
EADERIEIE RZEHEIHT), and he also published dozens
of related papers and articles. Mr. Wu was entitled to subsides
from Chinese government for his outstanding contribution in
science, technology and management as an expert in such
areas. He was also awarded the Second Prize of Progress
of Technology from Chinese Academy of Sciences and other
prizes. He is also the person in charge of the highlight project
of the 863 program, “Biomedical Key Reagent” (4 #)%2 £
=1 A|) of the Eleventh Five-Year Plan of China.

EEREREEAEHE

REMAE([REE]) 6058 R -_T-—F—
AZTRABRZERBIUIFMITES -

Rk RasEtafy  BE(faRle)Ete
{2 LA K EMBAT 7 iR A2 HO E2E o

REEBRBETHRIEI X EEERRAAE
ER BHESEERERAFESR  HTERER
IREBARZESE  RAILIEEYRIERLER
NA(—FKRBERZFTGEM Fh 2 AR ORI
BAT)MITEE L EE - PRERZR AR R
Friftt 8 - REMERBLSLEEER - BEFE
BEBRIERERAREER IRTEEES - B
RICEZL - FRIR SRR RELCEZESEE -
R-IE—NMFNAZ-_ZT-—FA8H B4t
BB AR O BRAR(— KRB R ER
Ehz AR B AREE : 3396)IFHITES -

REERBBNNBRERTIE - B RELE
RHR T o R D2 EFF TG T B R EGE AT
BE5EI(BN9735H &I &) - 2EBFTEREF B
MERTE 28T EMNSREREBENTET
tF - RAAREZB(ANBHEER_F iw) - (R&D
B R RB) H — P INE B D E R TR R R A
SRR EEEE - WHERBERNEE+
o REABESBEXARLEMNTETFHE
Ry~ EIEBFORRL - PERIERMBUE S —F 1
FHIE - BER[+— 08635 B[ £V BEREE
ABEHEREEA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F#{ 2021 29



30

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAESHE

Mr. Wu has experiences in operation and investment for
several technology companies. Mr. Wu proposed the innovative
development strategy for companies, which is the three-
chain linkages comprising “innovation chain, industrial chain
and capital chain” when he worked in Chinese Academy of
Sciences Holdings Co, Ltd. As a result, the assets of aforesaid
company increased by more than RMB100 billion every
year, and he organised to invest in companies on Science
and Technology Innovation Board, including some famous
companies, for example, Quantumctek and Cambricon. Mr.
Wau also founded some biopharmaceutical companies such as
Jiangxi Boya Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Mr. Xu Lin ("Mr. Xu") , aged 62, is currently a Senior Vice-
President and President of China of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited and General Manager of Chow Tai Fook Investment
Limited* (B AEIRE AR A 7)) . Mr. Xu has extensive working
experiences and extensive experiences in policy making. He
was a Director of Business Development of CITIC Limited,
Vice-President of Kaisa Group Holdings Limited and Chairman
of Kaisa Financial Group* (£Jk# 4 Ri& B ), President of
Zhaobangji Financial Group* (JKFE 4 g4 [E ) and Zhaobangji
Properties Group* (JkFH & ZES%E ), an Executive Director
and Executive Vice-Chairman of DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited. With the exposure to several
positions, Mr. Xu has solid foundation in economic theory and
rich experience in management. Also, he is Vice-Chairman of
Enterprise Directors Association of Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macau Greater Bay Area.

Mr. Xu currently serves as a non-executive director of Hao
Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited (a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 1341) and chairman of Yunnan Jinggu Forestry
Co.,Ltd. (a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 6002655). Mr. Xu was an executive director of DTXS
Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited (a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
620) from April 2020 to February 2021, an independent non-
executive director of Lamtex Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1041) from March 2020 to July 2020 and an executive director
of Zhaobangji Properties Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1660) from
October 2019 to March 2020.

China United Venture Investment Limited i E K SIREGR AT

RELL2RZFTHMROENLEERETIE- R
FAEE T T EMSRERER AR TIESRR - &l
AR T RIFTHE B BB =EHIE
HbEEREE - RAREFENEE000%(ET
ARY - WHBRETEEEY BRLE—HA
FHRBIIRE 2 - RELTE 2 MEGERTAE
HEMRBERNERRARELHEYMBERT]

P EE([RFEE]) 6255 BERAXELES
BRARSREREFTRRERNAXEREER
NRBEIEEFRN - FFEEB BN TIEERMEK
FOKF - BERERNAERATEBEREE £
KEEREEERATREFERELXSRES T
& KBESREBMRBEMESERE - KE
AR EERARAPRTESREHEE
J& o FPEAEKBZEMUIER  BAEXRENLERE
WHEMEENERLSR  REBENEREER
HEREE -

HRERBNAZABEREREEEGRAR(—
RRBE R FTER ETZAF] - BHOASE : 1341)3F
HITEERZESAMERMDERAR(—RR L
HREBER ST Mz AT - BHASE - 600265)E
ER HELECN _ZE_ZEENAE-_ZE-—F
ZABMEEREE MM EERER A G (—
RRBRFTER EZ AR - BHBRSE : 620)%
TEE N-ZE-EF=-AFZ-_Z_FTF+ ALK
HEMEZERERAR(—KRBRAMER T2
AAE RS 1041 B FFNITEE LN —-F
—NE+AE-ZE-TF= AHME TR BEE
PERERAF(—RREIMEREMZAR B
DARER - 1660)H1TES o



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Lee Jui-lan (“Ms. Lee”), aged 60, is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company’s electronics business.

Ms. Lee has over 32 years of experience in the electronics
industry. She has extensive experience in software
development, marketing electronic products and management
of companies in Taiwan. She worked in Intertek Testing
Services Taiwan Ltd., which is principally engaged in testing,
inspecting and certifying electronic products, for more than
10 years with the last position of the general manager of the
electronic business unit principally responsible for the overall
management, which is a subsidiary of Intertek Group PLC, a
company listed in the London Stock Exchange.

Ms. Lee obtained a bachelor of Electronics Engineering degree
from National Taipei University of Technology, Taiwan in June
1984.
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REBETHBATNES -

TUTRETITERE B BI2F L5 K NEHFH
% EFERBHIAERREE I EHEEEE
ey - FERZEAFRBRNDERAAERE
10F » ZAREEREFESTEMIS  BAKR
B BREBUABETFESIMNBLE 2§
ERBEE  MZAAAGIBFRH LETAF
Intertek Group PLC #Jf{/ @B A=) °

FH LN —N\RFS A B A ENETEL A
BESET TIRBLB -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 &1 2021 31



32

Directors’ Report

EEEWE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 (the “Year 2021”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements for the Year 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year 2021 is set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, "Corporate Governance Report” and
“Financial Summary” on pages 6 to 21, pages 44 to 61 and
page 196 of this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year 2021 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 72 to 195.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

During the Year 2021, the Group adopted the following policies
to improve the environmental quality:

° to design and produce connectivity products by taking
into account the possibility of dismantling and recovery
of the components and materials

° to use recycled papers as printing materials whenever
appropriate
o to reduce electricity consumption by switching off any

light and electrical appliances which are not in use

° to choose energy efficiency appliances (with energy
labels showing on prescribed products) with lowest
energy consumption

° to avoid, reduce or control environmental pollution
arising from the Group’s operations and to require
our contractors to adopt and implement similar
environmental measures

° to ensure good management practices by reviewing
them regularly and ensure that they are tuned to the

changing internal and external circumstances

° to comply with all applicable environmental legislation,
standards and regulations
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The Group will put in place additional environmental policies as
and when appropriate or necessary to ensure that its business
operations are conducted in an environmentally responsible
manner.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The largest and the top five suppliers of the Group accounted
for about 9.84% and 32.7%, respectively, of the Group’s total
purchases for the Year 2021.

The largest and the top five customers of the Group accounted
for about 20.7% and 74.2%, respectively, of the Group’s total
turnover for the Year 2021.

At no time during the Year 2021 did a director, an associate
of a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year 2021 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 72 to 73 of this report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 as the Board
is expecting an unstable external business environment in the
year 2022.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 196 of
this report.

FIXED ASSETS

The Group did not have material capital expenditures and
commitments as at 31 December 2021.
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Details of these and other movements during the Year 2021 in
the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements for the Year
2021, respectively.

LIABILITIES

The Group raised new borrowings, in the form of bank loans
and unsecured borrowings for working capital replenishment.
As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding amount was
approximately HK$51.7 million. The Group pledged its
investment properties in Hong Kong and certain properties and
plants in the PRC held for use in the production and supply of
goods, to secure the bank loans granted to the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Year 2021 in the share capital
of the Company are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements for the Year 2021.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$Nil

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year 2021 and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Li Feng (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Yu Sanlong

Mr. Fan Xiaoling

Ms. Lee Jui-lan (Resigned on 6 May 2022)

Dr. Chen Xiaofeng (Appointed on 17 February 2022)
Mr. Ni Xian (Appointed on 4 March 2022)

Mr. Su Guang (Appointed on 1 May 2022)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Huang Bin (Chairman) (Appointed on 20 February 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Dr. Fong Chi Wai, Alex

Dr. Yan Ka Shing

Mr. Wu Lebin (Appointed on 20 February 2022)
Mr. Xu Lin (Appointed on 4 March 2022)

Dr. Feng Shen (resigned on 4 March 2022)
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In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Bye-laws of the
Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation. And, according to
the Corporate Governance Code under Appendix 15 to the
GEM listing Rules (“CG Code”), every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with Article 84(2) of the Bye-laws of the
Company, any Director appointed by the Board pursuant to
Article 83(2) shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are
to retire by rotation.

To comply with the above, Mr. Yu Sanlong, Mr. Fan Xiaoling,
Dr. Chen Xiaofeng, Mr. Ni Xian, Mr. Su Guang, Mr. Huang
Bin, Mr. Wu Lebin and Mr. Xu Lin shall retire from office at the
forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company not
terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short position of
the directors and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or its associate corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the
required standards of dealings by directors of listed issuer as
referred to the Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of Chapter 5 of the GEM
Listing Rules and Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

EERROREBRG 2EBRAR

R-B_—F+-A=1t—0  BARAREES
EAEEI([EBERABEKRE ) FEI2GFEZE
O PTECER - SiRiR GEM E AR RIE5E 5$5.46 %
5.67IRFTIL EMBEITAEFETR P 2 BTIREL
KB MEIERPIEXV SR T7 R FE8N HHRITRA
RE R FER ZBA - SRR RAIEL 2
BAH - EERREZBEANARBSEARER
(EERBH L BAEGRGIFE XV ER) 2 Bt M ARRE A
DR 2B ORBIT ¢

AARBREEOIEBITZEER

Number of Percentage of

issued issued share
ordinary capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
e 8T HAEABE BT
EEEH 514 ZERHAR BEZEDL
Mr. Wang (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 355,620,000 (L) 50.51%
F oA (KsET) EEHEEER
Mr. Wang Beneficial owner 52,595,000 (L) 7.47%
FrE EnEEA
Note: ffsT -
L denotes long position L e
1. The 355,620,000 shares are held by PT Design Group Holdings Limited 1. T4 EE 2 A% A H PT Design Group Holdings
(“PT Design”), which is indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wang. Limited ([PT Design |)#} 45 355,620,000/% i% {7 °
Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors and B EFXEEEN  WNZ_E-_—F+_F=+—8 "

chief executive of the Company, nor their associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations at 31
December 2021.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the persons or entities (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who have
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company which have been disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company, were as follows:

Directors’ Report
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Number of Percentage of
issued issued share
Ordinary capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
FriFE 81T EARARE BT
REREH 14 ZERHE BREZEDL
PT Design Beneficial Owner 355,620,000 (L) 50.51%
PT Design EmEEA
Mr. Pang Kuo-Shi (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 74,403,000 10.57%
[FERIER 5 A (Bt 1) EEHEEER
Modern Wealth Assets Limited Beneficial owner
(Note 1) 74,403,000 10.57%

Modern Wealth Assets Limited BEREA A
(BR7E1)
L denotes long position (L) EuA
1. Mr. Pang Guo-Shi is deemed to be interested in the 74,403,000 shares 1. FEEE L EHR AR E EEZEBRENANF
held by Modern Wealth Assets Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Modern Wealth Assets Limited f7#% 4 #974,403,000/%
Pang Kuo-Shi &t A A o
SHARE OPTIONS s

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out
in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements for the Year

BHMEWFI0 - R B-—FF

ARRBEREASFBER T —FEZHEY

- B R R

2021. During the Year 2021, no share options were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed. As at 31 December 2021, no
share options were outstanding.

e L
SR RS AT -
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year 2021 was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation on his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” above, no person in the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO was disclosed as having a notifiable
interest or short position in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in this report, during the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group had no transactions which need to
be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those
material related party transactions disclosed in Note 32
to the financial statements did not fall under the definition
of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules which are required to comply with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. The
Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements (if applicable) under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, PT Shenzhen is wholly-
owned by PT Consultants which is in turn owned as to 27.6%
by Mr. Wang, 22.0% by Mr. Kong Lixing (a former executive
Director who resigned on 5 December 2019) and 13.6% by Mr.
Zhao Guo Xing (a former executive Director who resigned on 5
December 2019).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s employees are selected, remunerated and
promoted based on their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
determined with regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save for the continuing connected transactions and connected
transactions disclosed above, during the Year 2020, the
following Director had interests in the following business which
were considered to compete or likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group (other than those

business where the Directors were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or the Group):

Name of Director

Name of entity which were
considered to compete or

likely to compete with the

business of the Group

WRBESREERBEK

Description of
competing Business

EERERBRRREFER 2 #ES

B EXBRSERER D REERFAREES
R-ZB-ZFE - THESERNA TR AEAREE
EGERIMERRKAREBREF X (ER
EZEREEURKARRN S AEE RS %
TERRSN) PR M

Nature of interests

EEpE FAEBRHF2EREE BRIEEBHEL BEME
Wang Li Feng PT Consultants Provision of Architectural Directly holding 27.6%
Design Service (other interest in PT Consultants
than technical and and a director
documentation work)
TR HEENA RHEERF IR (BRI EX  BEESAREER7.6% 1
TETIEERIN) W WRES
PT Shenzhen Provision of Architectural Indirectly holding 27.6%
Design Service (other interest in PT Shenzhen
than technical and through PT Consultants
documentation work) and a director
mERI REFEERERE(BMEX  ERRERAREZSEARER

Shanghai PT Architecture
Design & Consultant Co.,
Ltd (“Shanghai PT”)

EERBRERAFERERA
B[ Eigmm])

1ETERRIN)

Provision of Architectural
Design Service (other
than technical and
documentation work)

R SRR AT AR TS (B lg J 3
& TIERSM)
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As (i) each of the above Directors is fully aware of their
fiduciary duty to the Group, and will abstain from voting on
any matter where there is or may be a conflict of interest; (ii)
the Master-planning and Architectural Design Business will
be first undertaken by the Group as general design contractor
under the Business Cooperation Agreement, unless otherwise
requested by independent developers; (iii) unless otherwise
requested by independent developers, all master-planning
work shall be first subcontracted to the Group; (iv) the Group
have the first right of refusal on accepting the architectural
schematic design work unless it is specifically requested by
the independent developers that such work shall be performed
by PT Consultants or PT Architectural; and (v) Mr. Wang has
not involved in the day-to-day management and operation of
Shanghai PT, the Group is capable of carrying its business
independently of and at arm’s length from the businesses
of these entities. Save as disclosed above, the Directors are
not aware of any business and interest of the Directors that
competed or might compete with the business of the Group
and any other conflict of interests which any such person had
or might have with the Group during the Year 2020.

DONATIONS

During the Year 2021, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to RMB5,000.

SUFFICIENCY PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company had, up to the date
of this report, maintained the public float required by the GEM
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and senior management for the Year
2020 in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities.

Directors’ Report
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and a retirement benefit scheme for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong and the Taiwan, respectively. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% and
6% of relevant payroll costs to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme and the defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
respectively, which contribution is matched by employees. For
contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund, the maximum
amount is HK$1,500 per month.

Eligible staff of subsidiaries operating in the PRC currently
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The PRC subsidiaries is required to
contribute an amount of 10% on the covered payroll of its
employees to the central pension scheme for the funding of the
retirement benefits. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of the eligible
employees of the PRC subsidiaries.

The Group’s contributions to the abovementioned defined
contribution schemes vest fully and immediately with the
employees. Accordingly, (i) for each of the two years ended 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2021, there was no forfeiture
of contributions under the abovementioned defined contribution
schemes; and (i) there were no forfeited contributions available
for the Group to reduce its existing level of contributions to
the abovementioned defined contribution schemes as at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2021.

For each of the two years ended 31 December 2020 and 31

December 2021, the Group did not have any defined benefit
plan.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed herein, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the Year
2021.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, who resigned as the auditor of the Company on 26
November 2019.

BDO Limited (“BDO”) was appointed as the auditor of the
Company on 26 November 2019. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2020 were audited by BDO.

BDO resigned as the auditor of the Company on 3 December
2021. UniTax Prism (HK) CPA Limited has been appointed as
the auditor of the Company with effect from 6 December 2021.

The consolidated financial statements for the Year 2021 were
audited by UniTax Prism (HK) CPA Limited. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-
appoint UniTax Prism (HK) CPA Limited as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Huang Bin
CHAIRMAN

24 June 2022
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of China United Venture
Investment Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance and believes that in the
achievement of the long term objectives of the Group, it is
utmost importance to conduct the business with accountability,
transparency and fairness.

As of the date of this Annual Report, the Board with the
assistance of the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and the external legal adviser,
continues to monitor and review the corporate governance
(“CG”) practices of the Group to be in line with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 15 (the “CG Code”) to the GEM Listing Rules on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
with effect from 1 January 2022 (the “2022 CG Code”) and
shall conduct the review of the current CG practices in
accordance with 2022 CG Code and make necessary changes
when appropriate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG
Code to the GEM Listing Rules effective up to 31 December
2021 (“2021 CG Code”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2021. The Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

THE BOARD
BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board has a balance of skills and experiences appropriate
for the Company’s business. There is a balance of both
executive and non-executive Directors in the Board members
who bring to the Board with a wide range of professional
experiences in the management, finance and legal industries,
which provide strong support towards the effective discharge of
the duties and responsibilities of the Board. On the date of this
report, the Board comprises a total of eleven Directors, with six
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Li Feng (Vice Chairman),
Mr. Yu Sanlong, Mr. Fan Xiaoling, Dr. Chen Xiaofeng, Mr. Ni
Xian and Mr. Su Guang and one non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Huang Bin (Chairman), and four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Fong Chi Wai, Alex, Dr. Yan Ka Shing, Mr.
Wu Lebin and Mr. Xu Lin.
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The Board composition of the Company during the yearended #HZE-—ZT-—&+_-A=+—BIIFEREENE

31 December 2021 and up to the date of this Annual Reportis R HH] - NARESSHEKNAT ¢
set out below:

Strategy and
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Executive Development
Directors/Committees g% /%8¢ Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
R

BNREEE  FMWZEREE REZEE  UTZREE BRZES

Independent Non-Executive BIFHTES

Directors

FONG, Chi Wai, Alex &R M M M M M

YAN, Ka Shing BEl C C M M M

FENG, Shen BR(R-T== M M M M M
(ceased on 4 March 2022) = AMAHML)

WU, Lebin (appointed on REW(MZTZ=F - - - - -
20 February 2022) —AZTREZRM)

XU, Lin (appointed on FH(R=TZ=F M - M - -
4 March 2022) ZAMBEZRT)

Chairman and Non-Executive TERIEHTES
Director

HUANG, Bin (appointedon ~ &Ext(R-ZT-— - - C - -
20 February 2022) —AZTREZRM)

Vice Chairman and Executive EIXFERHTES
Director

WANG, Li Feng (redesignated T /EIE(RA=T=—F - M M C C
on 4 March 2022) = AmBHAT)

Executive Directors BITES

YU, Sanlong T=# - 5 - M -

FAN, Xiaoling Ee - - - M -

LEE, Jui-lan (resigned on FRB(RZ2=F - - = M -
6 May 2022) AARBEIT)

CHEN, Xiaofeng (appointed on fREEiZ (N _Z -4 - - - - -
17 February 2022) —A+tREZRM)

NI, Xian (appointed on FE(ME2F=A - - - - -
4 March 2022) MAEEZE)

SU, Guang (appointed on BReE(R-B-—F - - - - -
1 May 2022) TA—BEZ)

Notes: B&E

1. C is chairman of the relevant board committees of the Company 1. CRARFIHBEEZESERFE

2. M is member of the relevant board committees of the Company 2. MAXRARIIBBESZESKE
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Biographical details of all the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
section under this Annual Report. An updated list of Directors
identifying their roles and functions is maintained on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORSHIP DURING AND AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD

The nomination committee met for 1 time during the year
ended 31 December 2021 to, among others, introduce new
talent to the Board and fulfill the succession needs of the Board
with an aim to creating sustainable values for the Company’s
shareholders.

Redesignation of Chairman of the Board

Mr. Wang Li Feng (“Mr. Wang”) being the Co-Chairman of the
Board and executive Director, has been redesignated to Vice
Chairman of the Board with effect from 4 March 2022 due to
job re-arrangement.

Following the redesignation of Mr. Wang to Vice Chairman of
the Board, he will remain as an executive Director, the chairman
of the executive committee of the Company (the “Executive
Committee”), the chairman of the strategy and development
committee of the Company (the “Strategy and Development
Committee”) and a member of the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company.

Cessation of Director

Dr. Feng Shen (“Dr. Feng”) resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the audit committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”), the Remuneration
committee, the Nomination committee, the Executive
Committee and the Strategy and Development Committee,
respectively, upon the expiration of term of letter of
appointment on 4 March 2022 as he wished to devote more
time to his other business commitments.

Dr. Feng confirmed that he had no disagreement with the Board
and that there was no matter relating to his cessation that
need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company or the Exchange.
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Appointment of Director

Dr. Chen Xiaofeng (“Dr. Chen”) has been appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 17 February 2022.

Mr. Huang Bin (“Mr. Huang”) has been appointed as a non-
executive Director and Chairman of the Board with effect from
20 February 2022.

Mr. Wu Lebin (“Mr. Wu”) has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 20 February 2022.

Mr. Ni Xian (“Mr. Ni”) has been appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 4 March 2022.

Mr. Xu Lin (“Mr. Xu”) has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 4 March 2022.

Mr. Su Guang (“Mr. Su”) has been appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive of the Company with effect
from 1 May 2022.

Biographical details of Dr. Chen, Mr. Huang, Mr. Wu, Mr. Ni
and Mr. Xu are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT” of
this report.

Resignation of Director

Ms. Lee Jui-lan (“Ms. Lee”) has resigned as an executive
Director due to her other business commitments with effect
from 6 May 2022. Following the resignation of Ms. Lee, she
ceased to be a member of the executive committee of the
Company.

Ms. Lee has confirmed that she has no disagreement with the
Board and she is not aware of any matters that need to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company or
to the attention of The Exchange in relation to her resignation.

Corporate Governance Report
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Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
has complied with the requirements under the Rule 5.05 of the
GEM Listing Rules regarding the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) with Dr. Fong
Chi Wai, Alex, Dr. Yan Ka Shing and Dr. Feng Shen.

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, all the
Directors confirmed that they had compiled with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021. The Company
has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation on his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all INEDs to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the 2022 CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Chairman
of the Group is responsible for leading the Board to ensure
that it operates effectively and performs its duties, while
Chief Executive of the Group is responsible for the overall
implementation of the Group’s business development and
general management. During the Year, the Company did not
have a Chief Executive. On 1 May 2022, Mr. Su was appointed
as an executive Director and the Chief Executive. The daily
operation and management of the Company is monitored by
the executive Directors and senior management as disclosed
in “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT?” of this report. The Board considers that the
Company has complied with Code Provision C.2.1.
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The types of decisions taken out by the Board include matters
in relation to:

° corporate and capital structure;

° corporate strategy;

° significant policies affecting the Group as a whole;

° business plan, budgets and public announcements;

° delegation to the Chairman, and delegation to and by

Board committees;
° key financial matters;

° appointment, removal or reappointment of Board
members, senior management and auditors;

° remuneration of directors and senior management; and

° communication with key stakeholders, including
shareholders and regulatory bodies.

The Board may delegate certain decision-making regarding
the daily operation and administration of the Company to the
senior management from time to time, the daily operation and
management of the Company is monitored by the executive
Directors under the direction and supervision of the executive
Directors.

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships) among members of
the Board.
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BOARD OPERATION

The Board meets regularly over the Company’s affairs and
operations. During the year ended 31 December 2021, two
general meetings and six Board meetings were held for the
purposes of, among others,

(i)

(i)

(il

(iv)

(vi)

reviewing and approving the quarterly results of the
Company for the three months ended 31 March 2021
and for the nine months ended 30 September 2021;

reviewing and approving the interim results of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2021;

reviewing and approving the annual results of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020;

discussing and approving a very substantial disposal
transaction;

discussing and approving the overall strategies and
policies of the Group; and

considering and approving the remuneration packages
of the respective Directors.

The attendance record of each member of the Board at
the Board meetings and the annual general meeting of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out
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below:
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HEE ERRE
Board 2021
Meetings SGM AGM
—E-—F
EEEEE RREBIXE RREFXS
Mr. Wang ThAE 6/6 11 11
Mr. Yu FisE 6/6 11 11
Mr. Fan whAE 6/6 11 11
Ms. Lee ES e 6/6 11 11
Dr. Fong pillin 6/6 1/1 1/1
Dr. Yan ENEEAE 6/6 11 11
Dr. Feng (ceased on 4 March 2022) )SELE(R-_ZT-—4F 6/6 11 11
= AN BAEHE)
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Remuneration Committee was formed for, inter alia, the
following purposes:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on policies
and structure for remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration; and

(b) to determine the remuneration packages for executive
Directors and senior management and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Remuneration
Committee was made up of two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Yan (Chairman) and Dr. Fong, and one
executive Director, namely Mr. Wang. Dr. Feng ceased his duty
on 4 March 2022, and following his cessation, Dr. Fong was
appointed on 4 March 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held for the purpose of, among others,
reviewing, approving and recommending the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management to the
Board for consideration and approval. The attendance record
of each member of the Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:
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Attendance
Members of Remuneration Committee yMESERE HE=R
Dr. Yan (o= 1/1
Dr. Feng (ceased on 4 March 2022) BE+T(R T - —F= AMBEHE) 171
Mr. Wang Tt 11
Dr. Fong (appointed on 4 March 2022) FET(R T —F=FNBEERE) N/A i B

Details regarding the Company’s emolument policy and long
term incentive schemes, as well as the basis of determining the
directors’ emoluments are set out in this Annual Report.

The Remuneration Committee will meet and review the
emolument policy and long-term incentive schemes as well
as the basis of determining the emolument payable to the
Company’s directors in Year 2021.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of
reference.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Dr. Yan (Chairman), Dr. Fong and Mr. Xu.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
held five meetings and performed the following duties:

(1) reviewed and commented on the Company’s draft
annual, interim and quarterly financial announcements,
Directors’ Report, Independent Auditors’ Report and
Financial Statements, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval;

2 reviewed and commented on the Group’s internal
controls;

(3) met with the external auditors and participated in the
appointment, reappointment and assessment of the
performance of the external auditors; and

° reviewed the results of the external audits;

o reviewed and assessed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk control/mitigation tools including
the risk management systems, the internal audit
function relating to risk management and the
Group’s contingency plans;

° reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
systems after considering the report from the
internal auditors;

° reviewed the significant findings and
recommendations from the internal auditor
and external auditor, and monitored their
implementations; and

o reviewed and monitored the compliance by the
Company with all applicable laws, regulations,
standards and best practice guidelines.

(4) The annual results presented herein have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.
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The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:
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HE_T-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE  EZZ
BEKBZHFEREFIIT

Attendance
Members of Audit Committee EREZEGRE HE =
Dr. Yan ME 5/5
Dr. Fong HiEL 5/5
Dr. Feng (ceased on 4 March 2022) BEt(R-_ZE-—F=AMAET) 5/5
Mr. Xu (appointed on 4 March 2022) FEE(R-_E - —F= ANBEZRT) N/ATE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration
paid or payable to the Company’s auditor, UniTax Prism (HK)
CPA Limited (2020: BDO), in respect of audit and non-audit
services is set out below:
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2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

HK$1,100,0005% 7T

BDO Limited ERNGEREMEXMERAT
Audit service EET RS
Non-audit services (Note 1) T ARAS (I ET)

UniTax Prism (HK) CPA Limited

BRAT
Audit service FET AR
Non-audit services (Note 2) T ARTS (FIEE2)

Note 1: The non-audit services mainly consisted of the reviews of the Group’s
interim financial reports and the performance of certain agreed-upon
procedures.

Note 2: This non-audit services represent the services rendered as reporting
accountant for a circular issued in connection with a disposal of a
subsidiary during the year.

An independence confirmation has been obtained from the
UniTax Prism (HK) CPA Limited confirming that UniTax Prism
(HK) CPA Limited is independent of the Group in accordance
with the independence requirements of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants for the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

HK$300,0007% 7T
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established the Nomination Committee
pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee adopted the following procedure and criteria for
nomination of Directors:

1 Procedure for Nomination of Directors

1.1 When there is a vacancy in the Board, the Board
evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge
and experience of the Board, and identifies
any special requirements for the vacancy
(e.g. independence status in the case of an
independent non-executive Director).

1.2 Prepare a description of the role and capabilities
required for the particular vacancy.

1.3  Identify a list of candidates through personal
contacts/recommendations by Board members,
senior management, business partners or
investors.

1.4 Arrange interview(s) with each candidate for the
Board to evaluate whether the candidate meets
the established written criteria for nomination of
Directors. One or more members of the Board
will attend the interview.

1.5  Conduct verification on information provided by
the candidate.

1.6 Convene both Nomination Committee meeting

and Board meeting to discuss and vote on which
candidate to nominate or appoint to the Board.
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2. Criteria for Nomination of Directors

2.1

Common Criteria for All Directors

(i)
0]

Character and integrity

The willingness to assume broad fiduciary
responsibility

Present needs of the Board for particular
experience or expertise and whether the
candidate would satisfy those needs

Relevant experience, including experience
at the strategy/policy setting level,
high level managerial experience in a
complex organisation, industry experience
and familiarity with the products and
processes used by the Company

Significant business or public experience
relevant and beneficial to the Board and

the Company

Breadth of knowledge about issues
affecting the Company

Ability to objectively analyse complex
business problems and exercise sound

business judgment

Ability and willingness to contribute
special competencies to Board activities

Fit with the Company’s culture

Board diversity
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2.2 Criteria for Non-Executive Directors

(@) Willingness and ability to make a
sufficient time commitment to the affairs
of the Company in order to effectively
perform the duties of a director, including
attendance at and active participation in
Board and committee meetings

(b) Accomplishments of the candidate in his
or her field

(c) Outstanding professional and personal
reputation

(d) The candidate’s ability to meet the
independence criteria for directors
established in the GEM Listing Rules

In structuring of the Board composition, by taking into account
the Group’s board diversity policy, board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All the ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination Committee
was made up of one executive Director, namely Mr. Wang,
one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Huang, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Yan, Dr. Fong
and Mr. Xu.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, one Nomination
Committee meeting was held for the purposes of, among
others, (i) assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; (i) making recommendation to the Board
for consideration the re-election of all the retiring Directors as
Directors at the 2021 AGM; and (iii) reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board. The attendance record of each
member of the Nomination Committee during the year ended
31 December 2021 is set out below:
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Attendance
Members of Nomination Committee BEEZEERE HE=
Mr. Wang FhE 11
Mr. Huang (appointed on 4 March 2022) BERA(MN - = ANBEZRT) N/ATE
Dr. Yan HiE 11
Dr. Feng (ceased on 4 March 2022) BEt(R-_Z-—F=AMAET) 11
Dr. Fong (appointed on 4 March 2022) HFEL(R-_E-—F=ANAEELE) N/A 38 R
Mr. Xu (appointed on 4 March 2022) FEE(R-_E - 4= ANBEZRT) N/ATE

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company would provide to each newly appointed director
or alternative director an induction package covering the
summary of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director of a
Hong Kong listed company, the Group’s businesses and the
statutory regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company
as well as the Company’s constitutional documents to ensure
that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Company has provided information related to the changes
in the GEM Listing Rules to the directors to update and refresh
the directors’ knowledge on the latest developments to the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company will continuously update
the directors on the latest developments to the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance the directors’ awareness of good
corporate governance practices.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, a summary of their
records of continuous development training is as below:

BRRIBIICERENT

HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HIFE ' KENH

Attending
webinars/

reading materials

and updates

relevant to

corporate

governance

HEe

EEREREN

Mg

HAEER

HEBARYBIE

Name of Directors EEHE MR R EH
Chairman and Non-Executive Director: FERFHTES

Mr. Huang Bin (appointed on 20 February 2022) &4 (R E-_—_F - A -+ REZT) N/ATE
Vice Chairman and Executive Director: BIEEREHYITESE

Mr. Wang Li Feng FREEE(R_ZE__F= ABHEE)

(redesignated on 4 March 2022) J

Executive Directors: BITES:
Mr. Yu Sanlong F=8gekAE J
Mr. Fan Xiaoling BN RE J
Ms. Lee Jui-lan (resigned on 6 May 2022) TEBL LT (R - —FhH A/NHEET) J
Dr. Chen Xiaofeng REgE T (RN E__F AT HEZE)

(appointed on 17 February 2022) N/A A3
Mr. Ni Xian (appointed on 4 March 2022) Rzt (RN E-_—_F=AMBEZF) N/ATE
Mr. Su Guang (appointed on 1 May 2022) BAEE (RN E-__FHA—BEZE) N/ATE A
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BEHTES
Dr. Fong Chi Wai, Alex FEEET J
Dr. Yan Ka Shing B J
Dr. Feng Shen (ceased on 4 March 2022) BHREE(R_ZE-__F= ANAET) J
Mr. Wu Lebin (appointed on 20 February 2022) REGR&EE(RN-_E-—F - -+ HEST) N/A 38 R
Mr. Xu Lin (appointed on 4 March 2022) F A (R - F= AHEZT) N/ATE
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

According to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for
publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to directors or management of the Company. Such
questions, requests and comments can be addressed to Mr.
Wang Li Feng by email to lifengwang@188.com or Mr. Patrick
Chang at patrick@glorymarkhightech.com.hk.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend
payout of the Company must be in accordance with relevant
laws, rules and regulations and subject to the Bye-laws of the
Company.

The dividends may be paid up in the form of the Company’s
shares in addition to cash, by the distribution of specific assets
of any kind or by distribution of any form. Subject to compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and the Bye-laws of the
Company, in deciding whether to propose any dividend payout,
the Board will take into account, among other things, the
financial results, the earnings, losses and distributable reserves,
the operations and liquidity requirements, the debt ratio and
possible effects on the credit lines, and the current and future
development plans of the Company.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Directors are aware of the requirements under the
applicable regulations, Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Hong Kong Listing Rules for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. All the inside
information identified by the Directors shall be published
and disclosed to the public in a timely manner through the
Company’s publications and communications, unless the
information falls within safe harbours as prescribed in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this report, there has not been any change in the Company’s
Bye-laws. The Company’s Bye-laws are available on the
websites of the Company (www.glorymark.com.tw) and the
Exchange (www. hkexnews.hk).

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged under a service contract with
Mr. Tam Sik Wai, who is an associate member of each of The
Chartered Governance Institute and The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute, to act as the company secretary of
the Company since 8 April 2022, who has complied with the
requirements of Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules. He has
been contacting with Mr. Wang Li Feng and Mr. Patrick Chang
directly in respect of company secretarial matters.

All the Directors have access to the advice and services of

the company secretary on corporate governance and Board
practice and matters.
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Group has formulated risk management and internal
control systems to provide standard guidelines for
identification, assessment, management, monitoring and
reporting of all materials risks of the Group. Appropriate internal
control procedures are established to ensure a comprehensive,
accurate and timely record of accounting and management
information.

The Group has an Internal Audit Department which reports
directly to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department
conducts a regular review to ensure the financial statement
is prepared in accordance with the relevant accounting
standards and applicable laws and regulations. It provides
the Audit Committee and the Board with useful information
and recommendations on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. Internal Controls Review Reports are
submitted to the Audit Committee and the Board for review with
recommendations adopted to further enhance the effectiveness
of the internal controls. The Internal Audit Department also
assists the Audit Committee in monitoring the implementations
of the previously identified findings and reports the status
of remediation to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit
Department generally reviews and assesses the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control systems by adopting a risk-
based audit approach based on the Internal Control — 2013
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”).
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % BT R

| & @ Prism

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA UNITED VENTURE
INVESTMENT LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS GLORY MARK HI-TECH
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

%

UNITAX

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China United Venture Investment Limited (formerly known as
Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited) (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 72 to 195, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unqualified opinion on those
statements on 25 March 2021.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION FROM CONTRACT

PEHEZERBENIEZNRAER

WORK OF COMPREHENSIVE ARCHITECTURAL

SERVICES

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on pages 88 to 92.

The key audit matter
BRESFEE

We have identified the revenue recognition from
contract work of comprehensive architectural services
as a key audit matter due to the significant judgement
and estimate used by management to determine the
total cost to complete and the contract costs incurred
for work performed to date.

The Group recognised revenue from its provision of
comprehensive architectural services amounted to
HK$22,009,000 during the year ended 31 December
2021. The Group recognises service revenue by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activities at the end of the reporting period, measured
based on the proportion of contract costs incurred
for work performed to date relative to the estimated
total contract costs. Accordingly, revenue recognition
on these contracts involves a significant degree of
management judgement in the estimation of the
total contract costs and stage of completion of each
contract.

SR 45 2 B T R R B S TR 88T 02 2
@ 3B -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AEREMTHNETNAEEZSEER

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition from
contract work of comprehensive architectural services
included:

- Obtained an understanding and evaluated
management’s process relating to the
estimation of total contract costs, determination
of the stage of completion and recording of
contract costs;

- Compared contract sum and budgeted contract
costs to respective signed contracts and
approved budgets on a sample basis;

- Discussed with the management and checked
the supporting documents to evaluate the
reasonableness of management’s estimation
of the total contract costs and contract costs
incurred for work performed to date on a
sample basis;

- Recalculated the percentage of completion
based on the proportion of contract costs
incurred for work performed to date relative to
the estimated total contract costs; and

- Assessed reliability of contract budgets by
comparing actual contract costs against
budgeted costs of completed projects prepared
by the management of the Group.
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The key audit matter
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR &

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BA R E

VALUATION OF TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on pages 108 to 116.

The key audit matter
BAREENEE

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the
Group’s trade and other receivables is approximately
HK$197,207,000, net of accumulated loss allowance
on trade and other receivables of HK$7,588,000.

The management of the Group performed periodic
assessment on the expected credit loss (“ECL”) of
the trade and other receivables and the sufficiency
of provision for loss allowance based on information
including ageing of the trade receivables, historical
settlement records, expected timing and amount
of realisation of outstanding balances, and ongoing
trading relationships with the relevant customers. The
management of the Group also considered forward
looking information that may impact the customers’
ability to repay the outstanding balances in order to
estimate the ECL.

We have identified the loss allowance on trade and
other receivables as a key audit matter because the
amount is significant to the consolidated financial
statement as a whole and the assessment of trade and
other receivables under the ECL model involved the
use of significant degree of management judgement
and may be subject to management bias.

BEZREMEBWARR 2 EE

BRI ARE SRR 21 FE108E116
B8R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REBEATHNESFNAEEZER

Our procedures in relation to valuation of trade and
other receivables assets included:

- Reviewed the management’s assessment of
ECL model and challenge the reasonableness of
the methods and assumptions used to estimate
ECL of trade receivables;

- Obtained an understanding of the methodology
for the ECL model, development processes
and its relevant controls, through review of
documentation, discussion with management
and independent valuer;

- Assessed the reasonableness of assumptions
and judgements made by the management of
the Group on model adoption and parameters
selection; and

- Examined the key data inputs to the ECL model
on a sample basis to assess their accuracy and
reasonableness.
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The key audit matter
BRETEE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’ s internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR &
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Lee Kwok Lun.

UniTax Prism (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Kwok Lun

Practising Certificate Number: P06294

Hong Kong, 24 June 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REeREsEkEMEZEKRER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 &, =

—E-—F+-_A=+—BHLEFEE

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i aE FET FAET
(Re-presented)
(&)
Continuing operations FEREETR
Revenue PN 5] 339,255 202,748
Cost of sales and services rendered HE RIRERBEK AR (318,229) (246,095)
Gross profit EF 21,026 46,653
Other income H g A 7A 4,744 5,317
Other gains and (losses) HEa ezt ke (E58E) 7B 4,397 (1,052)
Impairment losses of financial assets, TREERERE  NKRERD
net of reversal 8 (2,812) (1,866)
Change in fair value of investment KEMERNTEE
properties 18 (750) (500)
Share of (loss)/profit of joint ventures EIEEELE (BEB) w7 (1,789) 1,325
Finance costs B 75 X 7S 9 (1,892) (49)
Selling and distribution expenses HENRDHEAX (8,455) (5,987)
Administrative expenses TR (67,903) (46,045)
Loss before taxation RR %1 AT 5 18 13 (53,434) (2,204)
Income tax expense FriSfimx 12 (3,072) (1,198)
Loss for the year from continuing REFERKEER2FANEE
operations (56,506) (3,402)
Discontinued operation ERIEEEEN
Profit/(loss) for the year from REERIEREEE 2
discontinued operation FRmF (EE) 11 106,232 (1,720)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRBEFM(EHE) 49,726 (5,122)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ ERHEMZE (BAX) WHE
income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified HE T B D EEEm. 2
subsequently to profit or loss: EH -
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBFIES 2
translation of foreign operations fE X =% (6,984) 2,460
Share of other comprehensive income BHEELEZEMEE
of joint ventures I & 5 101
(6,979) 2,561
Total comprehensive income/ FREEWE (X)) EE
(expense) for the year 42,747 (2,561)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REREREMEERER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 2 —F—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—B-—F —T-THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i aE FET FHEIT
(Re-presented)
(g&=75)
(Loss)/profit for the year attribute to AR ABEFER
owners of the Company (B8R w5F
- From continuing operations —REBELCEER (56,243) (2,856)
— From discontinued operation —REBERIEEEET 106,232 (1,720)
49,989 (4,576)
Loss for the year attributable to R EREGFANER
non-controlling interest
- From continuing operations ~RERBELCEER (263) (546)
49,726 (5,122)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) UTATEGZEKE
attributable to: (X))
— Owners of the Company R N/NEIE =N 43,010 (2,015)
- Non-controlling interests — R M (263) (546)
42,747 (2,561)
Earnings/(loss) per share from continuing K BB & & %E5 K&
and discontinued operations BRIEREER 2
BRAEF, (EE) 15
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) —HAR R EE (E) 7.10 (0.67)
Loss per share from continuing REBELEEH 2 BREE
operations 15
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) —HAR R EE (EN) (7.99) (0.42)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 £ 2021 73



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R IR R &R

As at 31 December 2021 R =—FE—-—F+=-HA=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ok FETT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB kEE 16 29,825 50,417
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 25,641 8,828
Investment properties WEMEE 18 13,500 14,250
Interests in joint ventures ReEEBErENER 19 3,405 5,189
72,371 78,684
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 20 58,131 50,589
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& H b e AR R 21 197,207 69,284
Contract assets ANEE 22 5,266 3,052
Amount due from a joint venture R —REEEDERE 23 7 10
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIAS 24 84,132 56,403
344,743 179,338
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables, other payables and B 5 EMERR - B
accruals R ERE A 25 137,188 78,761
Contract liabilities aHaE 26 1,663 1,556
Lease liabilities HEEARE 17 5,497 309
Tax liabilities HIEAE 32,425 43,299
Bank and other borrowings RIT R H b &K 27 51,675 =
228,448 123,925
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 116,295 55,413
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERABAE
LIABILITIES 188,666 134,097
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY eI i h=Ki
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 15,558 908
NET ASSETS EEZFE 173,108 133,189
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma R OR &

As at 31 December 2021 R —Z-—F+_-A=+—8H

2021 2020
—EZ—F —T-THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i aE FET FHEIT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR 2 R 1

Share capital &N 28 7,040 7,040
Reserves & 166,822 126,640

Equity attributable to owners of RAFIHER AEML 2R
the Company 173,862 133,680
Non-controlling interests FEF7E A% 4 2 (754) (491)
TOTAL EQUITY DA 173,108 133,189

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 195 SH72F195B 2T KRRV T - —F X
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of A -+ BEEE& 4 & LIZRETIZE  WHN

directors on 24 June 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: TEERAEE:
Wang Li Feng Fan Xiaoling
ey DEIN2
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - - —F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAEE 2 ER
Non-
Share Share Merger Translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests Total
BE  ROGEE AHRE ERHE REEA Nt FERER @
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FET FAT FAET FET FAT
(Note 28) (Note |) (Note i)
(Hiz#28) (Hiizi) (Hi2i)
At 1 January 2020 RZF=-ZF
—HA—H 6,400 - 680 9,993 112,544 129,617 59) 129,672
Loss for the year FREE - - - = (4,576) (4,576) (546) (5,122)
Other comprehensive income  FRE {2 E K%
for the year
Exchange differences arising &N E KT
on translation of foreign EXCERESR
operations - - - 2,460 - 2,460 - 2,460
Share of other comprehensive ~ EIHAE £
income of joint ventures Hip2mhaE - = = 101 = 101 = 101
- - - 2,561 - 2,561 - 2,561
Total comprehensive income/  Z2E Mz (FX)

(expense) BE - - - 2,561 4576 (2,015 (546)  (2,561)
Issue of new shares (Note j) éﬁfﬁ MR (Hazi) 640 5,760 - - - 6,400 = 6,400
Share of issue expense (Note ) 51T (#1iti) - (322) - - - (322) = (322)
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEF

+=A=+-H 7,040 5,438 680 12,654 107,968 133,680 (491) 133,189
At 1 January 2021 RZB=--%
-A—H 7,040 5,438 680 12,554 107,968 133,680 (491) 133,189
Profit/(loss) for the year EREn/ (BR) = - - - 49989 49,989 (263) 49,726
Other comprehensive EREMEH
(expense)/income for the year  (FI%) /Uizs
Exchange differences arising &N £ A
on translation of foreign EXCZERER
operations - - - (6,984) - (6,984) - (6,984)
Share of other comprehensive ~ EIHAE ¥
income of joint ventures Efh2EKE - - - 5 - 5 = 5
- \ - (6,979) - (6,979) - (6,979)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ 2 (F¥) /

income ks - - - (6979 49989 43010 (063 42,747
Release of exchange translation 7 & — B

reserve upon disposal of REIRRRERHNE

a subsidiary B3 s - - - (2,828) - (2,828) - (2,828)
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-%

+ZA=1+-H 7,040 5,438 680 2,747 157,957 173,862 (754) 173,108
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Notes:

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEZEEX

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

On 3 June 2020, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent placed
64,000,000 placing shares at the placing price of a HK$0.1 per
placing share to certain independent placees. The net proceeds from
the subscription is net of related issued costs and expenses (Note 28).

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued for the
acquisition under the group reorganisation in 2001.

Bat

R-ZZE-_ZTENA=ZA ARAEEEREFL
RERE Bt EEREEEESEERESER
12015 T 18 & T 1B 3L & BE A Bt #64,000,000/%
BLERD - REAESRBFHECHBREBEZEITR
ARFAXZ (HF28) -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T - —F+ A =+—HILFE

2021 2020
—B-—F —T-THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i aE FET FET
(Re-presented)
(&&=75)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Loss before taxation from continuing REFELEER 2 HRBA
operations BB (53,434) (2,204)
Profit/(loss) before taxation from REBDRIEEE B 2 BRBA
discontinued operation wm A, (EE) 106,232 (117)
52,798 (2,321)
Adjustments for: AT & IEEL P
Change in fair value of investment WEMERNTEE
properties 750 500
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% BERKETE
equipment 4,994 5,839
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 3,118 1,517
Gain on effect of lease modification FAE B R R RN WS - 9
Finance costs B %5 Bk 2R 1,892 49
Interest income on bank deposits H|ITFERFE WA (210) (659)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE FEM&BEEBIE
and equipment - 240
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B AR 2 W= 33 (107,885) =
Impairment losses of financial assets, TREERERE-"
net of reversal F0 Bk # 0] 2,812 1,866
Provision/(reversal) of allowance for TFERE(&E)
inventories 7,826 (2,614)
Written off of other payables and T8 B qth FE T BR R R
accrual TEIREH (315) (2,688)
Share of loss/(profit) of joint ventures EIEEEREEER
Ca ) 1,789 (1,325)
Operating cash flows before movements 2@ E &S 2K LIRS
in working capital mE (32,431) 395
Increase in inventories FEHEN (15,368) (12,630)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 & E b & Y BR ZUIE A0 (80,705) (6,359)
Increase in contract assets BHEELI (2,219) (1,802)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, B SRR M EMAERR
other payables and accruals RIERBRAEM CRL) 69,789 (487)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities & # & &0, CGF ) 107 (3,697)
Cash used in operations KEFMART (60,827) (24,580)
Income tax (paid)/refunded (BfY) /BERIMER (13,946) 1,728
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E- —E-FF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ok FET F&T
(Re-presented)
(&&E5)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXKEFAREFE
ACTIVITIES (74,773) (22,852)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BEKLEHE
equipment (4,172) (5,067)
Repayment from/(advance to) a joint —MAELEER (Bm—H
venture BEDERR) 3 (10)
Interest received B F & 210 659
Net cash flow from disposal of B E—EHERRAE
a subsidiary Ren= 55 33 59,754 =
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) REXKFREB(FA)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFHE 55,795 (4,418)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEXRKE
Net proceeds from issue of shares BT P S SIS FR - 6,078
New borrowings raised MEEZER 51,675 =
Interest paid for borrowings B & F B (1,053) —
Repayment of principal portion of lease ~ HEBBEAR LD ER
liabilities (2,522) (1,288)
Interest paid for leases BRAERNE (839) (49)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING REXKFEESFHE
ACTIVITIES 47,261 4,741
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN HERERBSEEE M
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RD)F&E 28,283 (22,529)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BzERE2ERERAES
AT 1 JANUARY 56,403 79,871
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE Exgsgoge
RATE CHANGES (554) (939)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R+=-ZA=+—HzZzBHER
31 DECEMBER, REPRESENTED BY ZEIBLER  WRTES
BANK BALANCES AND CASH FBRERTR 84,132 56,403
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80

GENERAL INFORMATION

China United Venture Investment Limited (formerly
known as Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited) (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability. The
shares of the Company were listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 4 January 2002.

The addresses of the registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and the principal place
of business in Hong Kong is at Room 1801-1802,
18/F., Bank of America Tower, No. 12 Harcourt Road,
Central, Hong Kong, changed from Room 1033, 10/F,,
Central Building, 1-3 Pedder Street, Central, Hong
Kong, effective from 11 May 2022.

The Company acts as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of connectivity products mainly for
computers and peripheral products, and provision of
comprehensive architectural services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). The functional currency
of the Company is United States dollars (‘USD”). As
the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”) consider that it is
appropriate to present the consolidated financial
statements in HK$.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time, the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are effective for the
Group’s financial year beginning 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 — Related Rent
Concessions

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

ERHITEEBMBERELERN ([FE
R EEDN ) REBYKREE
B&ET 2 ()

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not EEMERMRERNFITIEENKERS
yet effective ERARERBMKEREEREBITA

AEBIRRZFRERAIATEEMER K
EMWHMIBEENBREERRBEM

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective:

BHREEAERT A

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related EEMBHREEN  RRAORABEIA
Amendments® F17%

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual Framework? AEMBREELN  HESRBMRWE
HKFRS 3 F3% (BT R)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between AEMBHREELN REREEBEARNAELE
HKFRS 10 and an Investor and lts Associate or Joint FI0RREAS LANEELESTE
HKAS 28 Venture* FHAERIE285%

(B3 %)

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as Current EAQHENEIY, AENORBIERDIEREE

HKAS 1 or Non-current and the related CHES) ZEE52020)F N ABEET A

amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause®

[HBRROZT-ERAY
SHREXEERHNNESE
wADE]

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting Policies® EREHENEIT  BHIENRE
HKAS 1 and REERBRE
HKFRS Practice EREBRER2
Statement 2 i (EITR)
Amendments to Definition of Accounting Estimates® BEAQIMEAESY,  gHAEFNESR
HKAS 8 SCHES
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets and BEAMEAEN HEZRFEANEENEER
HKAS 12 Liabilities arising from a Single (BFTX) BREERE

Amendments to

Transaction®
Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds

BR G ERF16%

W% BERRE-1ERERER

HKAS 16 before Intended Use? (B3T%) #I P13 FRIR2
Amendments to Onerous contracts: Cost of Fulfiling a EAQHEAENT BESH-BISHMKE
HKAS 37 Contract? (B3T%)

Amendments to COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions EEMBREENE —T-—FRA=THZER
HKFRS 16 beyond 30 June 2021' EASCHEY) COVID-19- M & B Al
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2018 - EEMBHREEN T N\FER-F-RFEAEY
HKFRSs 2020 cycle? (BFTX) BREERINFE B
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties that are measured at fair values
at the end of each accounting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristic of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

EESTHE®

ARFEERFEAHRESERSIHH
mE2EEZEHEEERAEIRKE
BRERAXMNNER TEERRE
EBRABHANA S - HERTEEA
B-ERBFEEXRRENAFERF K
SESZENGERHERTIS2EER
EEXREEEREEENEEXER
2R R

O R BHREMS A FEFER
BATVEAENEAZHATBASR K
BREANFERBBGAZBH N TFEAER
BHNEZN 2BERE R F-MK
=R BEAWT

. F-RBARHRAFEEXER
BEEERT S LR (TEHE)
MEELESES A ARBHIE
1%

. FE-_RBARE AT UEZEXE
BEBAGE BETEERE R
MREANEESBEZHS K

c ECABABRBAEELRAMET
BRABASHNEHY-
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has:

° the power over the investee;

o exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee;
and

° the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Income and expenses of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

3. EESTHE®

(a)

(b)
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3.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

(b)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of joint
venture used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in a
joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the joint
venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the
joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

3. EESTHE®

(b)
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3.

88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. Specifically, the Group
uses a five-step approach to recognise revenue:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to
the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 5: Revenue recognition when (or as)

the Group satisfies a performance
obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.

Revenue is measured based on the
consideration specified in a contract with a
customer, excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties and sales related taxes.

3. EESTHE®

(c)
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to a contract are accounted for and presented
on a net basis.

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the
Group as a construction contract when the
contract relates to work on an asset under
the control of the customer and therefore
the Group’s construction activities create or
enhance an asset under the customer’s control.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be reasonably measured, revenue from the
contract is recognised over time using the cost-
to-cost method, i.e. based on the proportion
of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs. When the outcome of
the contract cannot be reasonably measured,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are expected to be
recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract
are estimated to exceed the remaining amount
of the consideration under the contract, then a
provision is recognised in accordance with an
onerous contract. An onerous contract exists
when the Group has a contract under which the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the
contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are
measured at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the net cost of continuing with the contract.

Over time revenue recognition:
measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation (i.e.,
resources consumed, labour hours expended
and costs incurred) relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation.
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REMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T - —F+ A =+—HILFE

3.

92

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Over time revenue recognition:
measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation (Continued)

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable
consideration, the Group estimates the amount
of consideration to which it will be entitled
using either (a) the expected value method
or (b) the most likely amount, depending on
which method better predicts the amount
of consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration
is included in the transaction price only to the
extent that it is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group updates the estimated transaction
price (including updating its assessment of
whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of
the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T

3.

EREBE®

(c)

BEFEHBA (®)

BERRIERRA st BT EKE
HEFHEE (7)

TERE

RESUERENAEANME &
S EERB@EMEBEK ()R
e (RFRABAEATSCAE
EEFBAEERESHNRES
BMME)GEERESHNRE
ok L

B ERESREETENE
AT AR E R R G ARRE -
BERFAETFTEEHAREER
EABRABENBRTFARS

E1% -

A S 50 5 3R 45 R S T 1 2 2
9B (1% B 3 5 B A2 R
EHREZRONME) UBEE
5| 25 95 2 53 B9 5K 17 72 10 1 3% A R
WA & R R 2L -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Leasing
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

The Group as a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding lease liability with respect to
all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option) and leases of low value
assets. For these leases, the Group recognises
the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased assets are
consumed.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
o an estimate of costs to be incurred by

the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.

3. EESTHE®

(d)
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3.

94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

(d)

Leasing (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as
a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group measures lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are not paid at
that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability (using the effective interest
method) and by reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Leasing (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is
a change in the assessment of exercise
of a purchase option, in which case the
related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date
of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to
changes in market rental rates following
a market rent review, in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a modification to
an operating lease as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.
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3.

96

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

(d)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as
a lessor with respect to building. Leases for
which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

When a contract includes both lease and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS
15 to allocate the consideration under the
contract to each component.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at the amount
of the Group’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of
that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchanges rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences relating to the
retranslation of the Group’s net assets in
Renminbi (“RMB”) to the Group’s presentation
currency (i.e. HK$) are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in translation reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the translation
reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.

The change in functional currency of the
Company was applied prospectively from the
date of change. All items were translated into
RMB at the exchange rate on that date. The
cumulative currency translation differences
which had arisen from the translation of foreign
operations up to the date of the change in
functional currency will not reclassified from
equity to profit or loss until the disposal of the
relevant operations.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit plan, state-
managed retirement benefit scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRSs requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing
to employees (such as wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.
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e MBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
“profit before taxation” because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3.

100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

(i)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interest in a
joint venture, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments and interest are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.
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e MBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they are relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income
Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
on initial recognition of the relevant right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on
the date of remeasurement or modification.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHHBER®

(Continued)

102

(i)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other

(i)

BLIE (5)

ERRETEHRERIBD AER
HEEREM KSR E RN
oA ZBEBRBERIN R&
BRT  EHRELEHIBAID 5
REMEEKREREEREETD

comprehensive income or directly in equity e
respectively.
(i) Property, plant and equipment ()] NE-BERZE

Property, plant and equipment, including
buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of

ME- -BEIRGB(BEFAERE
FEIEEREMBETERAZLZ
BF)NERANBRERRFTITE
KkE®ZRFRERBE (MF )RR

financial position at cost less subsequent AW BT mE AR
accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and HELHREZYH FIEEREZ

buildings

When the Group makes payments for
ownership interests of properties which includes
both leasehold land and building elements,
the entire consideration is allocated between
the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition. To the extent the allocation of
the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-
of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model.

When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
buildings (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of the reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation purposes are classified
and accounted for as investment properties and
are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

3. EESTHE®
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T - —F+ A =+—HILFE

3.

104

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

(k)

U]

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible to
determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Intangible asset with indefinite
useful life is tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication
that it may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T

EREBE®

(k)

U]

REME (50

REMETIRHERHREYE
KATBERAKBHIEEAHE
%D T EE A R DR A ) 2 B AR
LR -RIEERVERELELZ
ERhEER(REEZLE
PSRRI FRAREREEZ =
FRE)RRIEERYEZ ME
ABs-e

BEREEZRE

RBEEHMR AEEERTESR
WEEZEHRE UHBERTA
ERBRBETZEEELBERE
BER-HORERBRETR K&
B EAEEEE 2 AR S5
NEEREEBER(HA)ZRE-
AERAERAFHCETLEER
PEBEREEPRBRAELR
R A5 B A 1T R (BRI A o

A RN ST ER & AR
REREBEZRSE FHER
EER GAARKRERENE
AHRAMBRERTRERLRE %
REIRE R BR B AT 5 Y & & B
BzHBEUAERGEFRARRERE
ARRBZEBEENEARR -

WiEEtEE 2 ATl E & BIERE
RHE MZEEZREESHE
EABREZER KO SR - RERRE
BN R 1B a5 R RERR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

Impairment on tangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit and
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of inventories are
determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

3. EESTHE®
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHHBER®

(Continued)

106

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.
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All recognised financial assets are subsequently FIEERNEREERE R LE
measured in their entirety at either amortised K AR A FEETEETS

cost or fair value, depending on the AR GCRMEENPE @A
classification of the financial assets. Financial EEVBERRETSE BEE

assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) and fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets Financial assets that meet the
following conditions are subsequently measured
at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) excluding
expected credit losses (“ECL”), through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross
carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial
recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is
the amount at which the financial asset is
measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method
of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, adjusted for any
loss allowance. The gross carrying amount
of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.
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3.

108

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income (Continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period.
If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss
and is included in the “Other income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on financial assets (including
trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits and bank balances), and contract
assets which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12 months ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables and contract assets. The ECL
on these assets are assessed individually for
debtors with significant balances or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12 months ECL,
unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T - —F+ A =+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

() Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk,
e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread and the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

() Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

° existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

3. EESTHE®
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REMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T - —F+ A =+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESFBER®

(Continued)
(n) Financial instruments (Continued) (n) £WMIT A (5)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

112

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under

EHBEERREEBHHEHREE
R FE 95 R 7T )5 (B ¥ 18 69 B b R

HKFRS 9 (Continued) HRE (&)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (i) 15 B2 fr A Z 5 00 (4F)
(Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above Nam LAl ¥ 4 48 R w )
assessment, the Group presumes that BEA YN RE BR300
the credit risk has increased significantly BIRAEEeHEH Y TR
since initial recognition when contractual REEERBREEZE M.
payments are more than 30 days past RIEASEEAEERRE
due, unless the Group has reasonable ERNEREZHEEELIEN
and supportable information that [l
demonstrates otherwise.
The Group regularly monitors the 7N 2 B TE HA BE 2R OF DA S R
effectiveness of the criteria used to EERRESBEEL MDY
identify whether there has been a BEK W EELE
significant increase in credit risk and BB ABERABAEE
revises them as appropriate to ensure BE %0 70 3Kk 18 i HA A0 3 Bl A5
that the criteria are capable of identifying ER R EZELN-
significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

(ii) Definition of default (ii) BRI E

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit— impaired includes
observable data about the following
events:

(a)

significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T - —F+ A =+—HILFE

3.

114

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv) Werite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss
if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHBER®

(Continued)
(n) Financial instruments (Continued) (n) EWMIA (5
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (F)

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective
basis or cater for cases where evidence
at the individual instrument level may not
yet be available, the financial instruments
are grouped on the following basis:

EHBEERREE B HEHEE
R 95 R 7T )5, (B ¥ 15 69 B b R
B Ri1E (%)

v) BRIz BEE BT ZE R E

iR ()

—RmE BHREEEBRE
RBBEHNENAEED
FRERHNBRSREREANSE
EEMUBDNREREL
RO EZE RO LERE
BEEMERM KR

HEBEEEIRRERE
EIFEHEBRN @R T AK
FREBERALEFEENBR
Alem T ARATEER

#8:

o Nature of financial instruments o SMmITAEMHE (AR
(i.e. the Group’s trade and other SEBESH R EAME
receivables and contract assets WHESRUAREGHE
are each assessed as a separate EEAE AR E
group); BT )

o Past-due status; o B HAAR O

. Nature, size and industry of . BHEANEEL  RIE

debtors; and

° External credit ratings where
available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents
of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHHBER®

(Continued)
(n) Financial instruments (Continued) (n) £WMIT A (5)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets and other item
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income
is calculated based on amortised cost of
the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their

EHBEERREEBHHEHREE
R FE 95 R 7T )5 (B ¥ 18 69 B b R
B Ri1E (%)

v) HBRHEEEBL G ERE

B (4

MBRATDRESHMEE
MBEREESE BKED
MEERLEEERE &
EEAER T A B ARE
TREBEEMEHENAGTH -

AEBEBERAEREELR
TANKFRHERERER
HMEKDZSIEER EE S

carrying amount, with the exception of EWERREHNEEER
trade receivables and contract assets ElEBERERAERAR
where the corresponding adjustment BRoh o
is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Financial liabilities THEE

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at amortised cost including trade and other
payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan
note issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

AEEGRTFERABELENAEW
HETHREBEIHE -RBHKA
AEMERABE(BRESEN
REAREMEMNFTE -tEE -FT
BEBRRAEERTZAHRRE
REBZEHRY)ERERE
BRA R XIHBHEKN AT E-FH
MEF XN EEANER -

R IEFERR B (B DA RO 1T R 3K
Yot sk B IR 1R 5 A FERR o

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the ECRBEEBANTRENE
obligation specified in the relevant contract is TEERE  BUHSK R BRY 2R IERE
discharged, cancelled or expires. RZBTHBEBE-
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(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs not directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction, or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

EESTHE®

(n)

(o)

(p)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of
the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

(a) Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart
from those involving estimations (see below),
that the directors of the Company have made in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities or deferred tax assets arising from
investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group’s
investment properties portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are
not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors
of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale
is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not
recognised any deferred taxes on changes in
fair value of investment properties as the Group
is not subject to any income taxes in relation to
the fair value changes of investment properties.

Classification of joint arrangements

PT & PL China Limited (“PT & PL China”)
and PT & PL Architectural Design Consulting
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd (“PT & PL Architectural
Design”) are the limited liability companies
whose legal form confers separation
between the parties to joint arrangement
and the Company. Furthermore, there is no
contractual arrangement or any other facts and
circumstances that indicate that the parties to
the joint arrangement have rights to the assets
and obligation for the liabilities of the joint
arrangement. Accordingly, PT & PL China and
PT & PL Architectural Design are classified as a
joint venture of the Group.

4., EAREHHEHREFIBEMZE

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 £ % 2021

ERESFTBREZEXRHAEK (&)

REYWRZELHE

RTERAAFERAFEZR
BMEAMEANEEHBRARAR
ELRBEE ARAREFER
AAEERENZHEHATLRA/A
SEZEREMERLEUNER BT
EHEEREMIFEBHEEHERE
VIR P B2 &R D B S
MEBRAFTE -HIt HFHER
SERENEZELCHEAR A
RREFEERAFERAGE
ZERENMEZEEETEEBH
6 Ui ] B RS R I A A R o AUt
HRAEEBARRENEZ R
FEEDHNEFNAFHR &
B ERRENEAFEEH R
R AT EE A -

EELHTH

HEmA(FE)BRAR (1A
mamiA (PR RBERA (L
B)RERGAFBHABRAA ([
mah (L8 ZERE]) HER
BEERR - EERFVAKEGER
PERTEARREIRED FR - dhIN
BMESHLZHAEMEMEER
BAKRA GERHFETHAEE
RHNEEREREN HEER
AYER - Wit BB (FE)
R@mm (L8) BERADHE
REEENRERZE -

119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T - —F+ A =+—HILFE

120

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

Revenue recognition from contract work

The management estimates the amount of
foreseeable losses or attributable profits of
comprehensive architectural design work based
on the latest available budgets of the contracts
prepared by project team with reference to
the overall performance of each contract work
and the management’s best estimates and
judgements.

Due to the contracting nature of the business,
revenue recognition involves a significant
degree of judgement. Notwithstanding that
the management reviews and revises the
estimates of contract costs for the contract as
the contract progresses, the actual outcome of
the contract in terms of its total costs may be
higher or lower than the estimates and this will
affect the revenue and profit recognised.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables
and contract assets

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate
ECL for the trade and other receivables and
contract assets. The provision rates are based
on internal credit ratings as groupings of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns.
The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information
are considered. In addition, trade and other
receivables and contract assets with significant
balances and credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the Group’s
trade and other receivables, contract assets
and the ECL assessment are disclosed in Notes
21, 22 and 34(b)(ii) respectively.

4., EAREHHHREFIBEMZE

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 £ % 2021

fhEt FREM 2 EERIR (40)

ESRAMERKRARENEE
HRHEEBRR R

AEEERAEBREEAEES R
Hit BURERA R ENEERNEH
FEEERE - BEXDENAEGH
B BRI NS EEERRD AR
NMEEFR -BEEBERNAE
SENELENR St RBA
TBERAXBZ NN AESHE
EAAEBENABEEEN -RE
BEEHEENIHEELBERE
MEREERNBEHEEHNNES-
o BEEERGEHRELRE
ERENE S K& H iR R
RREECEAFGHERBEES

=l

HHEEEERED Z X MG
FHrE - BEASEEE SR
HMEKRER GHNEEREH
EEEBEBFMNER DI FEER
BaE21 ~ 22 K% 34(b)(ii) °

121



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T - —F+ A =+—HILFE

122

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

As at 31 December 2021, investment properties
were carried at aggregate fair value of
HK$13,500,000 (2020: HK$14,250,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
The fair value was based on valuations on these
properties conducted by independent qualified
valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve certain assumptions of market
conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes
to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties and corresponding adjustments
to the amount of gain or loss reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Further details
of the fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties are set out in Note 18.

Estimated useful life of property, plant and
equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the
directors review the estimated useful life of
property, plant and equipment with finite
useful life. The estimated useful life reflects
the directors’ estimates of the periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s plant
and equipment. The residual values reflect the
directors’ estimated amount that the Group
would currently obtain from disposal of the
assets, after deducting the estimated costs
of disposal, if the assets were already of the
age and in the condition expected at the end
of its useful life. The carrying amounts of plant
and equipment with finite useful life as at 31
December 2021 are HK$29,825,000 (2020:
HK$50,417,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the recoverable amount, in the case of value in
use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount
rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the assets belongs,
including allocation of corporate assets when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, otherwise recoverable
amount is determined at the smallest group of
cash generating units, for which the relevant
corporate assets have been allocated. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the
recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2021, property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets with carrying
values of HK$29,825,000 and HK$25,641,000
(2020: HK$50,417,000 and HK$8,828,000)
respectively. No impairment losses have been
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil).

4., EAREHHEHREFIBEMZE

(b)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Management reviews the condition of the
inventories of the Group and makes provision
for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer suitable for sale.
Management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. The Group carries out an inventory
review at the end of each reporting period and
makes provision for obsolete and slow-moving
items. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amounts of inventories were approximately
HK$58,131,000 (2020: HK$50,589,000), net of
impairment provision of HK$11,095,000 (2020:
HK$3,269,000).

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2021, no deferred tax
asset has been recognised on the tax losses
of HK$58,325,000 (2020: HK$23,465,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less than expected, a
material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which such a reversal
takes place.
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Revenue represents the revenue arising on sales of
goods and construction contracts for the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from
continuing operations is as follows:

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

with customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021

WA

BARERNHEEEREERADNELN
WA -

AEBFARBRELEER 2 WAD
&z mT -

(i) PH/EEFEHBA

BE_ZEZ-_—%+=-A=1+—H
IEFE

Contracts of

Sales of  comprehensive

connectivity architectural
products services Total

HE ZHEEE
ERER REEH gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET

Revenue from contacts with BEMBEREERE155 8

customers within the scope AMEF A HMBA

HKFRS 15
Types of customers EFER
Original equipment manufacturer B &% £ ER ([OEM |)

(“OEM”) customers BE 208,657 - 208,657
Retail distributors ZEDHEE 108,589 - 108,589
Contractors A - 22,009 22,009
Total @t 317,246 22,009 339,255
Geographical markets HEm S
Korea ZH 103,037 - 103,037
The People Republic of China ~ F#EARLFE ([FE])

(“PRC") 13,100 22,009 35,109
Japan AR 67,471 - 67,471
The United States of America =724 RE ([EE

(“USA”) 94,148 - 94,148
Taiwan 8& 27,547 - 27,547
Others Hih 11,943 - 11,943
Total w@at 317,246 22,009 339,255
Timing of revenue recognition 4 A 752 B 4
At a point in time RERE S 317,246 - 317,246
Over time & B ] - 22,009 22,009
Total @at 317,246 22,009 339,255
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5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. A )

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) PIH/REEEHWA (4)

with customers (Continued)

126

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-2-®BF+-A=+-8

=35
Contracts of
Sales of comprehensive
connectivity architectural
products services Total
HE FHEE
ERER RBE 4 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
Revenue from contacts with BRNBREENEISRE
customers within the scope AMEFAHMBA
HKFRS 15
Types of customers EFER
OEM customers OEMZF 153,840 = 153,840
Retail distributors ZENHE 107,767 - 107,767
Contractors ST = 31,141 31,141
Total @it 261,607 31,14 292,748
Geographical markets WET S
Korea 52 72,354 = 72,354
The PRC H 10,189 31,14 41,330
Japan HAK 66,537 = 66,537
The USA =S 77,806 - 77,806
Taiwan a8& 19,343 - 19,343
Others Hith 15,378 - 15,378
Total w@at 261,607 31,141 292,748
Timing of revenue recognition I A 752 B #
At a point in time P E [ 2 261,607 = 261,607
Qver time 8 5 - 31,141 31,141
Total @at 261,607 31,141 292,748
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

(a)

(b)

Sales of connectivity products

For trading of connectivity products,
the Group sells connectivity products to
OEM customers and retail distributors.
Revenue is recognised when control of
the goods has transferred, being when
the goods have been delivered to the
specific location and confirmed by the
customers.

Contracts of comprehensive
architectural services

The Group provides comprehensive
architectural services to independent
contractors. Revenue from such services
are recognised when a performance
obligation is satisfied over time as the
Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date. Revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation
using input method.

The Group’s service contracts include
payment schedules which require stage
payments over the design period once
certain specified milestones are reached.
The Group requires certain customers
to provide upfront deposits range from
10% to 30% of total contract sum, when
the Group receives a deposit before
comprehensive architectural service
commences, this will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract, until
the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of the
deposit received.

5.

WA ()
i) BFAEAWBHEE
(a) HEEEKER

(b)
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5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA ()

(i)  Performance obligations for contracts with (i) FFEANBHIEREHE
customers (Continued)

() Contracts of comprehensive (b) ZEBERBEESH (&)

architectural services (Continued)

A contract asset, net of contract EREE(RR—&6HOMNEES
liability related to the same contract, NWERE)RBETZ2HEERGH
is recognised over the period in which AR REANEERAETR
the comprehensive architectural HBRBMKENEN REREH
services are performed representing the R BUAR RSB EK T ER
Group’s right to consideration for the MBORRERBF - RERBERRE
services performed because the rights BMEERENKAEEFKGHRE &
are conditioned on the Group’s future NEEEREZE SRR -

performance in achieving specified
milestones. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional upon
meeting the billing milestones.

(i) Transaction price allocated to the (iiiy) PEEEFAEANBKTENEEHN
remaining performance obligation for REEH®

contracts with customers

Contracts of comprehensive architectural PHEERFEEAOBERN—FA
services are typically completed within one year. TR oBMBE BB REELE
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction 155 BT 72 75 30 M % 58 5 Bl & 7%
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is ERTENENNRFHER -
not disclosed.
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. SEEHN
Information reported to the board of directors of the BARSBEEREKTHSEREMM@AA
Company, being the chief operating decision makers RAEFE (A FXELEERKE])ER
(“CODM"), for the purpose of resources allocation and WMERUFZASRHzE R RGEE
assessment of segment performance focuses on types MAER-
of goods or services delivered or provided.
Segment information reported internally for the RALBERRMFERBMRAAITZE R
purposes of resource allocation and performance DEEMDEREFERNETO N &
assessment is analysed based on the class of MEZLEAFEZRNELAER -
customers which is the same as information reported
to the CODM.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company has entered into an agreement to dispose of
the entire interests in Dongguan Asia-Link Technology
Limited (“Dongguan Asia-Link”) which were previously
included in manufacturing and trading segment. The
directors of the Company considered such business
was classified as discontinued operation during the
year ended 31 December 2021 and details are set out
in Note 11. The segment information does not include
the discontinued business.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under
are as follows:

1. OEM customers

2. Retail distributors

8. Contracts of comprehensive architectural
services

No operating segments have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

The above operating divisions constitute the results
from continuing operations by reportable segments of
the Group.

RBE-_FT_—F+_-_A=+—BL#HF
€ ARAELHHELERT DB
*%ﬁ@@?ﬂ%%ﬁﬂﬂﬁm#A
RERBEGODENDHMRE- XD
%ubﬁu%%ﬁkbﬂﬁz %__E'E—f—_ﬂ
ST RILEFERIERERIELER
i& ﬂ'RI'| %Cﬁ/\lzﬁuf‘]‘] °/X*E§*/I':[Z_ ?ﬁ
R PR R o

1, OEME
2. ZEDHERE

3. EHEZERBKEHD
SEREANDEBO BRI EAHEE

%ﬁﬁ%&&$ﬁl HoEE
e
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
and results by reportable and continuing operating

segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

TEBAREER

UTRASEREBFRFELE D EE
WA R EE DT -

I

BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HLFE

Contracts of

comprehensive
OEM Retail architectural
customers distributors services Total
OEMZF ZENHE 2HEFEREEH @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Continuing operations BEREEY
Segment revenue k1 ON 208,657 108,589 22,009 339,255
Segment results DEELE 284 3,494 (558) 3,220
Unallocated income RABKA 4,744
Unallocated expenses AOWHEL (61,398)
Loss before tax BREi AR (53,434)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-ZE-_ZF+-A=1+—HLEFE
Contracts of
comprehensive
OEM Retalil architectural
customers distributors services Total
OEMZEF TENHEE 2EBRERBEN Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FET FHET FET
Continuing operations BEREEY
Segment revenue ELON 153,840 107,767 31,141 292,748
Segment results NEEE 20,045 19,085 7,523 46,653
Unallocated income E LN 6,642
Unallocated expenses ANEHEY (65,499)
Loss before tax BREi AR (2,204)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no
intersegment sales in the current and prior years.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in Note 3. Segment results represent the loss before
tax of each segment without allocation of other
income, change in fair value of investment properties,
share of (loss)/profit of joint ventures, certain
unallocated finance cost, corporate administrative
expense and gain on disposal of a subsidiary. This is
the measure adopted for reporting to the CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets

and liabilities by reportable and continuing operating
segments:

THEEMN @)
TREBARRR (&)

ME2HH D BBRARIIRERELN
WA -RNEREEBEFELEETMD R
e 3 65

RED BN ST BUR B M 3Pt A E
VERTERRER - EEXEESD AN
BREATEER BRI Ry EEME A
REMEAFEED EBEARELE (B
B) 8 BTROBUMBKA BE
THRAXREE —FHEB AR KE-
BE TSP ER M A £ B EERRE 2 RIAH
ETERARERRBFEZT -

THEERRE

AT RASBEREZREFELERXED
BEDZEENBEDN:

Segment assets THEEE
2021 2020
—E-—% —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Continuing operations HEREER
OEM customers OEMEFE 153,367 88,318
Retail distributors TESHEDY 81,579 68,881
Contracts of comprehensive ZHERERBEY
architectural services 52,482 7,446
Total segment assets NEEERE 287,428 164,645
Corporate and other assets NEI R HMEE 129,686 93,377
Total assets BE#E 417,114 258,022
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TEER (@
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEEERERB (&)
Segment liabilities T HEEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Continuing operations HEREER
OEM customers OEMZE P~ 79,541 27,151
Retail distributors TEDHEM 41,395 19,019
Contracts of comprehensive ZHEERBEYD
architectural services 6,279 1,094
Total segment liabilities NEAERRE 127,215 47,264
Corporate and other liabilities AR HEMEE 116,791 77,569
Total liabilities BERHE 244,006 124,833

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than unallocated corporate assets,
including investment properties, interest in joint
ventures, certain other receivables, amount due
from a joint venture and certain bank balances
and cash.

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than unallocated corporate liabilities,
including certain other payables, tax liabilities
and bank and other borrowings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

TEER @)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7 F
Other segment information HtpEER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-—-S+-A=+—HLEE
Contracts of
comprehensive
OEM Retail  architectural
customers distributors services Unallocated Total
2EERE
OEMEF ZELHH BEEH AOE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT FET FET FET
Continuing operations BESEER
Amounts included in the measure ~ stADBEZH L EEE
of segment profit or loss or HEMSE:
segment assets:
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #1%  BiE R RETE
equipment (2,660) (1,385) (308) - (4,353)
Impairment of trade and other B 5 RE M FEW R
receivables and contract assets URANEERE (343) (179) (901) (1,389) (2,812)
Provision of allowance for inventories 7 & ¥ & (5,054) (2,630) - - (7,684)
Finance costs MR A (581) (303) - (1,008) (1,892)
Amounts regularly provided to the ~ FHIREFEBLERRE
CODM but not included in the BYRFADEEED
measure of segment profit or loss D EEEHENEE:
or segment assets:
Interests in joint ventures REBREMER - - - 3,405 3,405
Share of loss of joint ventures EHEELEER - - - (1,789) (1,789)
Interest income FISWA - - - 207 207
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6.

134

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

DHEER (&)
Hiua@EER (8)
BE-_Z_ZFE+-HA=1+—HILEE

Contracts of

comprehensive
OEM Retail architectural
customers distributors services Unallocated Total
PERE
OEMEF SELHE R%EH RAE @t
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FAT FET FET FET
Continuing operations BELEER
Amounts included in the measure of st AZHERS S
segment profit or loss or segment  BEGENEE:
assets:
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #1%  BiE R RETE
equipment (1,587) (1,111) (339) - (3,037)
Reversal/(impairment) of trade BIRKRRRANEE
receivables and contract assets e/ (FE) 105 74 (2,045) = (1,866)
Provision of allowance for inventories 77 & & (1,367) (957) - = (2,324)
Finance costs MRk A (29) (20) = = (49)
Amounts regularly provided to the ~ EEIIEH F T ELEREE
CODM but not included in the BYRFADBEED
measure of segment profit or loss D EEEHENEE:
or segment assets:
Interests in joint ventures REELERNER - - - 5,189 5,189
Share of profit of joint ventures ElEaELERT - - - 1,325 1,325
Interest income HERA - - - 625 625
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. PEER (@
Geographical information ih & & K
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the REEZEBUREE - F B

PRC and Taiwan.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external AEBZINREFPBABERDIZEFH
customers is presented based on the geographical BUBRY - AEEZERBEEEHR
location of the customers. Information about the DR EEMEBEUEZY -

Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the
geographical location of the assets.

Revenue from
external customers

SMREEWA
2021 2020
—E——F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Korea [ 103,037 72,354
The PRC e 35,110 41,330
Japan =N 67,471 66,537
USA x 94,148 77,806
Taiwan =0 27,547 19,343
Others E b b [ 11,942 15,378
339,255 292,748

Non-current assets

ERBEE

2021 2020
—E-—f B -TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FET
The PRC H 47,559 58,262
Hong Kong BE 16,282 13,229
Others H b b [ 5,125 2,004
68,966 73,495

Note:  Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures. Wit FRDEETBIEREELENET-
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TEER (@

Information about major customers FEEFEH

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years HEFEALASEBKATBI0%NU £

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the LBEPWAMT

Group are as follows:

2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET

Company A’ EEA 56,776 57,709

Company B! X FB' 72,415 56,926

Company C' EFEC 46,902 32,885

1 Revenue from sales of connectivity products. 1 REHEEREMZIBA -

7A. OTHER INCOME 7TA. HA
Continuing operations BEREER
2021 2020
—B=-—F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Re-presented)
(&=5)

Interest income on bank deposits HRITE R E WA 207 625

Rental income (Note a) HEeUWA (Kita) 1,836 1,997

Government subsidies (Note b) BT BL (A7 atb) 133 854

Tooling and sampling TARER 2,118 1,114

Written off of other payables and 55 H h E TR SR R TE IR B A

accruals 315 -
Miscellaneous income I A 135 727
4,744 5,317

Notes: Hiat -

(@) Rental income arising from the operating leases of its (@) ANREHHEENRFIONREDENLE
investment properties of the Company whole lease payment HEEAZ2HSBRAREE FABELEMN
were fixed. The related direct operating expenses of BEEEER Y5000 T (- 4F:
HK$95,000 (2020: HK$152,000) were incurred during the 152,000 7T ) °
year.

(b) The government subsidies represents salaries and wage (o) BN ER S —F()BBFTHRE

136

subsidies granted under (i) Anti-epidemic Fund by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
for the use of paying wages of employees of HK$ Nil (2020:
HK$777,000), and (i) Employment Support Scheme provided
by the PRC government of HK$133,000 (2020: HK$77,000)
in 2021. There are no unfulfilled conditions and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of those subsidies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

OTHER GAINS AND (LOSSES) 7B. HM=EEK (BHE)
Continuing operations FEREER
2021 2020
—E=-—f —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
(Re-presented)
(&=%))
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) — #MEW S (&8 ) F5E 4,397 (747)
Gain on effect of lease modification HEBHRKRAO Y= - 9
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  HE K& BN EE
plant and equipment - (240
Others HA = (74)
4,397 (1,052)

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS, 8. CREERESR (MRREE)
NET OF REVERSAL

Continuing operations BHEREETR
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Impairment losses recognised/ FTYSIERER, (BE)KRE
(reversed) on: &5 18
— Trade receivables — B S RKER 1,418 (179)
— Contract assets —GHEE 5 2,045
— Other receivables — E {th B U BR 3R 1,389 A
2,812 1,866
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10.
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Bt 35 AR MY RE

FINANCE COSTS 9.

Continuing operations

2021 2020
:g: - ﬂi —_=ZF= £F
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#ET FET
Interest expenses on TAEEBENFERX
— Bank borrowings —RITIER 135 =
— Other borrowings —H M EK 918 =
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 839 49
1,892 49

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10.

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, were as follows:

Ms. Lee Jui-lan was resigned as an executive director
of the Company on 6 May 2022 and her emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by
her for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2021.

EERFETHRAEMESURASR
REHEE 2FHM

FRAEFRTETBRABZFHFMAOT

BREAT R _E_—FRAANBEAE
AABMTES MELAMESBRER
RBE-ZZTE-_ZTFR=-F=_—F+=A
=t+t—HLIEFEREREAOME -

Mr. Wang Ms. Lee Mr. Yu Mr. Fan  Dr. Chen Mr. Ni Mr. Su
Executive directors Li Feng Jui-lan  Sanlong  Xiaoling Xiaofeng' Xian? Guang® Total
£ -4 E30) | T=& B 513
HTES it Zt K& %E Bt REEE? BEAEL @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
2021 —B--F
Fees ik - - - - - - - -
Other emoluments:  E {4 :
Salaries and HeREMBET
other benefits 3,309 1,104 732 592 - - - 5,737
Retirement RIRBF TR
benefit scheme
contributions 423 14 - - - - - 437
3,732 1,118 732 592 - - - 6,174
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 10. EERTETHRAEMEURTE R
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EeHEEEZHFM (5
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued)
Mr. Wang Ms. Lee Mr. Yu Mr. Fan
Executive directors Li Feng Jui-lan Sanlong Xiaoling Total
HITES TEELE ZFhEktr TFTDELZE BILEE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FET
2020 “BCEF
Fees we - - - - -
Other emoluments: Hi e -
Salaries and other benefits & R E &7 2,083 215 549 444 3,291
Retirement benefit scheme R RABFIFHEI 5%
contributions 18 51 18 18 105
2,101 266 567 462 3,396
1 Appointed on 17 February 2022 1 R-ZZE-_—_F-_A++tHBHEXT
2 Appointed on 4 March 2022 2 AT —F=-ZAMNAERT
3 Appointed on 1 May 2022 g RZZBE_—_FRA—HEZME

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

NERMBHTESIMEHHREFH X
RARAEREREBRH RS-

Independent Dr. Fong
non-executive Chi Wan, Dr.Yan  Dr. Feng Mr. Wu Mr. Xu
directors Alex  Ka Shing Shen® Lebin* Lin® Total
BYFBITES FEEEL BEBELE BRELD RERKE FMLLS Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
2021 —8--F
Fees e 120 - - - - 120
Other emoluments: Hif <
Salaries and HeREMER
other benefits - - - - -
Retirement benefit RIEFIFEIER
scheme contributions - - - - -
120 - - - 120
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 10. EERIETHAEMEURE R
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEFHEEZHM m)
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Dr. Hon.
Lo Wai Dr. Fong Mr. Lau
Independent Kwok $8s, Chi Wan, Dr. Yan Dr. Feng Mr. Lu Ho Kit,
non-executive directors MH, JP' Alex Ka Shing Shen  Yongchao' Ivan? Total
EEE/LT"
BUFHTES AFht Bt HEHEL BREL ak@rt ATREL b

HK$000  HKS00D — HK80OO  HKS000  HKS00D  HKS0O0  HKS'000
TR TR TR AT AT TAT TR

2020 - g 33
Fees e 60 120 - - 90 20 290
Other emoluments: Heofe
Salaries and HeREMBA
other benefits - - - - - - -
Retirement benefit BB B HE
scheme contributions - - - - - - -
60 120 - - 90 20 290
1 Resigned on 30 June 2020 { RZZEZZTFXA=1THEE
2 Resigned on 2 March 2020 2 N _TF= A HAFHME
8 Resigned on 4 March 2022 E R-ZZT-TF= ANAZTE
4 Appointed on 20 February 2022 4 RoBE-_—F-_A-+REZT
5 Appointed on 4 March 2022 ® AT —F-ANAEEET
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EZERFIETHAEMEURTA SR
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EEHEEZHM
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments N EFEBIIERTES 2 S E R
shown above were for their services as directors of the EERBRNRREERHE R -
Company.
During the both years, no emoluments were paid by AEERN AEEHMERZEESTYN
the Group to these directors as an inducement to join R E - 1A I AR INA & BB
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss ZRENEBREE TEEENELM
of office and no director had waived any emoluments. B & o
Mr. Huang
Non-executive director FHTES Bin'
HE A
HK$’000
FETT
2021 Y
Fees we -
Other emoluments: His :
Salaries and other benefits e kHEMEF =
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRTE FIET B3R -
Mr. Wong
Non-executive director EMITES Chun?
=R A&
HK$°000
FET
2020 —E-EHF
Fees e -
Other emoluments: EMe
Salaries and other benefits e kEMET 771
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRBAIET SR 9
780
1 Mr. Huang Bin was appointed as non-executive director of j BEWMAERTE__F_A-_+HEZHE
the Company on 20 February 2022. BARNEEHNTES -
2 Mr. Wong Chun was resigned as non-executive director of the 2 EREER-ZT_ZTFSA=ZTHHER
Company on 30 June 2020. NEIERITES -
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 10. EERIETHAEMEURE R
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEFHEEZHM m)
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Employees E&
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during FRNAEEREESFEERENE
the year included, four (2020: two) directors, details (ZEZZTF WMR)EF HME27FEBED
of whose emoluments are included above. Details BREXFEARREZTREEZITHA
of the emoluments for the year of the remaining one BEMEHK—FB(ZE_ZF  ZH)&m
(2020: three) highest paid employees who are neither HEESCMEFRBOT
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follow:
2021 2020
—E=—-F —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits e REAMER 519 9,360
Retirement benefit scheme RREF FTEIH
contributions 87 105
606 9,465
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Employees (Continued)
The number of the highest paid employees who are

not the directors of the Company whose remuneration
fell within the following bands is as follow:

10.

EERFETHRAEMSURAR
BREHEEZHMN )
B8 (%)

TIMEBERFEARREENRS H
BEZHBWT:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 7T £1,500,000/ T =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 T £2,000,000/ T = =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 Jt £2,500,0007% JT =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7t £3,000,0007% JT - =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7t 23,500,000 7T - =
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £4,000,0007% JT =
1 3
DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11. BRIEEEXEK

Disposal of trading of electronic products operation

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated
16 June 2021, the Group agreed to dispose the
entire equity interests in Dongguan Asia-Link to an
independent third party for a total consideration of
approximately HK$122,210,000. On 22 October 2021,
the disposal of Dongguan Asia-Link was completed as
the control of Dongguan Asia-Link was passed to the
acquirer.

The results of the Dongguan Asia-Link are presented in
this consolidated financial statements as discontinued
operation.

HEETEREZRE

*EHFEIHEE_?_ i/\ﬂ-f—/\ElEt’]ﬁ
EfE ASBREHERTHNE
HEET —Z2BYE = BREAEY
122,210,000 T - R =T = —F+ A
T+ H BARREDEAEHED
RUWE  Roc il 2 HEB&LEK -

RETDBOEERAKRE
RERIERERS-

MBHRERZ5
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REMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T - —F+ A =+—HILFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 11. DR UEKEER (&)
Disposal of trading of electronic products operation HEEFERESER (&)
(Continued)
The profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued ERIEEEEBHFENZF, (FHE)H
operation is set out below: HIEAT
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FET
Loss of trading of electronic products FANEFEME SHEKEE
operation for the year (1,653) (1,720)
Gain on disposal of trading of HTEEFERBE S EBNE
electronic products operation (#72£33)
(Note 33) 107,885 -
106,232 (1,720)
The result of the discontinued operation for the period HRGAEakEMEzEARKERZZ
from 1 January 2021 to 22 October 2021, which have E-_—4f—-—HA—-—HEZEZZE=-_—%+A
been included in the consolidated statement of profit T+t HAIEHRAERIEREXEBNESE
or loss and other comprehensive income is analysed DITEATE
as follows:
Period ended Year ended
22 October 31 December
2021 2020
BZ HE
—E-—F T TF
+BA=+=H +ZA=+—H
IEH HFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income H g A 467 3,125
Other gains and (losses) Eap ez & (E518) - (198)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (5) (1,293)
Administrative expenses THRX (2,115) (1,751)
Loss before taxation BrFRATES 18 (1,653) (117)
Income expenses FriS8®i X2 - (1,603)
Loss for the period/year attributable to AA2A Al %A A &1L
owners of the Company H,/F N 1B (1,653) (1,720)
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11.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z — %

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 11.

Disposal of trading of electronic products operation

(Continued)

Profit for the period/year has been arrived after

ERILEEE

&

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK E

R ()

ETEmE

——F#+-A=+-BILEE

CEX ¢

B/ FRaMDEmng/ (GEA) TolE

charging/(crediting): TBi&EH :
Period ended Year ended
22 October 31 December
2021 2020
S HE
—E-—F —E-TF
+A=+=H +ZA=+—H
ILEA HFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other staff costs H b8 T A
— Salaries and other benefits —FekEMETR 3,455 21,392
- Retirement benefits scheme —RIREFFH 85K
contributions 492 1,378
Total staff costs BB TRA 3,947 22,770
Depreciation of e
— Property, plant and equipment —M% - BB REE 641 2,802
— Right-of-use assets —EAEEE 64 74
Provision/(reversal) of allowance for ~ TFEEE ~ (#E) (FFAHEE R
inventories (included cost of sales R RIFAA)
and services rendered) 142 (4,938)
Period ended Year ended
22 October 31 December
2021 2020
BZE HE
—EZ—F —E-TF
+tA=+=R +=A=+—H
IEEA HFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income: Hapg A :
Interest income on bank deposits RT3 A B WA 3 34
Written off of other payables and W%Eﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ X N TEIRE A
accruals - 2,688
Miscellaneous income HIBMWA 464 4083
467 3,125
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REMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T - —F+ A =+—HILFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 11. BARUEREEK (8
Disposal of trading of electronic products operation HEEFERESER (&)
(Continued)
Period ended Year ended
22 October 31 December
2021 2020
Bz HE
—E-—F T TF
+BA=+=H +ZA=+—H
LA FE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other gains and (losses): HfbWzz M (B K) :
Net foreign exchange losses HNEE 8 2K F R = (198)
The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of REEAHREEH c EERBENE
Dongguan Asia-Link as at the date of disposal are [ERERN I RRE
disclosed in note 33.
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FiSHMAxX
2021 2020
—E-—-F —Z_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
(Re-presented)
(&)
Continuing operations BEREEL
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (‘EIT”) FREMSEMSHE ([EEMEHR])

— Current tax —EHHIE 3,072 1,198
Income tax expense for the year FANEREX 3,072 1,198
The amount mainly represents current tax expense on FHcBEXERBEPREL CER &
assessable profits arising in the PRC and is calculated Mz BB ERAE Rigp B 2 RITHE
at the rates prevailing in the PRC. The Company’s FE-ERREKLENARQRNEARE
subsidiaries operating in the PRC are subject to PP BEDEMRSH -MEFERN - RBE
enterprise income tax in the PRC. The applicable FEMEBEREREERER PREER
enterprise income tax rate of the PRC is 25% in ZEMBMEE2% M TXATIZS
accordance with the relevant income tax law and BB A JIBR SN o

regulations in the PRC for both years, except for those
subsidiaries described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Certain subsidiaries operating in the PRC fall within
the Preferential Corporate Income Tax Catalogue in
the specific zone. According to Cai Shui (2014) No.26,
qualified companies in Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone are granted
for a reduced enterprise income tax rate of 15% during
the period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2020
and further granted for a reduced enterprise income
tax rate of 15% starting from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2025.

Also, certain subsidiaries operating in the PRC were
accredited as “Cultural Innovation Enterprise” by the
local tax authorities and were registered with the
local tax authorities to be eligible to the reduced 15%
enterprise income tax rate for a period of four years
from 2017 to 2021 inclusive. As a result, the tax rate
of 15% is used to calculate the amount of current
taxation.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the consolidated financial statements as there
are no assessable profits for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

12.

g e D)

EHREKE2AETHBRARFTARFEH
@2 REETRERB B2 G- RIEM
FR(ZZT—MWF) 265 ' 5B FRBERARR
BEAEIERAZEEBRAAIRZZT —IY
F—H—HRE=-_ZE-_ZT&+=-_fA=+—
HEAE AT 15% < B BB R BN AT
"R - mME—ZE=-_—4F—A—HBEBE=
E_RAF+-_A=ZF+—H GEMEH
BB IR B ETEAL%ETH °

N EHREEEZETHBAREE
WEEIPTEEA XA ERE] I
EEMHSRBAETEM EERR =
T—+tFE_T-_—F(BEEA)HNNE
FHEIR15%Z BER RN ENSE
Fio A 15% 2 METARTEE R
HZ &He

HAMEFEALEELTABRY G
M- HEEBREEVBRERABTENE
Piat iR -

B o B0 M B A 2 B T AR B
EHER 2 BTBEHE
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REMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T - —F+ A =+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the loss before taxation per the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

12.

B8R

AFEEMBHAXAEGABRDE MEM
2 EURE R A ZBRBLATS M AT $8R

follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#ET FET
(Re-presented)
(&&E5)
Continuing operations BERSEER
Loss before taxation from continuing E4 B EK S X158
operations bR BRI & 1R (53,434) (2,204)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate  LAANHFT 1557 R25%:+ & 2 Fi 18
of 25% (13,358) (5651)
Tax effect of share of loss/(profit) of ~ EEAENEEE, Cafl)z
joint ventures B 295 (219)
Tax effect of income not taxable for ~ FAFIEM 5 BERRUA Z B
tax purpose wa (450) (557)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FAFIEM & NI R 2 B i
for tax purpose wa 751 1,897
Tax effect of tax losses not RERMIBEBE B BB E
recognised 11,905 180
Income tax at concessionary rate HEBMETGE ZMEH 231 (77)
Effect of different tax rates of A E M B ERE R AL 2 B A A
subsidiaries operating in RETRzZE
other jurisdictions 3,698 525
Income tax expense for the year NEEFEMRSHAXS 3,072 1,198

At 31 December 2021, certain subsidiaries of
the Group had aggregate unused tax losses of
HK$81,793,000 (2020: HK$23,465,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax assets
has been recognised in respect of such tax losses due
to unpredictability of future profit streams. As at 31
December 2021, tax losses of HK$44,424,000 (2020:
Nil) will be expired within 5 years.
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14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

13. KRBAIEE

2021 2020
—EC-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Continuing operations HREREER
Loss before taxation has been arrived  F& ¢ il 518 T3 48 40
at after charging: T3 ZIEEBH
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) BEME (HiF10) 6,294 4,466
Other staff costs == PN
— Salaries and other benefits - Fra REMEF 81,473 61,990
- Retirement benefits scheme - RIREFFTEI R
contributions 2,910 1,514
Total staff costs @8 TR 90,677 67,970
Auditor’s remuneration 2GS 1,100 1,400
Cost of inventories recognised as BRERINFERAE
expenses 302,767 222,477
Depreciation of e
— Property, plant and equipment -ME - WE KR 4,353 3,037
- Right-of-use assets - FRAEEE 3,054 1,443
Rental expenses for short-term leases RHHEH £ X 1,961 2,327
Provision of allowance for inventories 1F & & (st AHE &
(included in cost of sales and IREREAA)
services rendered) 7,684 2,324
DIVIDENDS 14. KA
No dividend has been declared by the directors of the AAREZWERBE_ZT=—_—F+=

Company in respect of the year ended 31 December

2021 (2020: Nil).

—EFE)
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REMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE T =-—F+_A=+—HILFE

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

15. SREFN(BH#A)

For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

RFECEXBRCRIEEERKE

AAREE AR 2 BREREF, (B
18) IRIEIA T AR E

Earnings/(loss) 2R (BE)
2021 2020
—B=-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of Rt EEREARBERF
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) (B1E)z2&H, (FE8)
per share 49,989 (4,576)
Number of shares &g S g=
2021 2020
=B -F —T-THF
‘000 ‘000
F i Fig
Weighted average number of ordinary AR E FIRER K #55
shares in issue for the purpose of BR/(BE)ZBE%TLEER
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) InwEF g8
per share 704,000 678,255
The dilutive earnings per share is equal to the basic HE_Z-_ k=T _FTF+_H

earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended 31

December 2021 and 2020.

REBRERAFNM -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 15. SRER(FHE) @

For continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
from continuing operations attributable to owners of

ARBFEAANBERBEREEBZER
EARANBEBERDIRBATERNGTE:

the Company is based on the following data:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Re-presented)
(geE5)
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of AEEAREERT, (FHE)W
calculating basic and diluted &ar,/ (E8)
earnings/(loss) 49,989 (4,576)
Less: (Profit)/loss for the year from B ERIEREEBENR
discontinued operation CaA) /BB (106,232) 1,720
Loss for the purpose of basic and FELCEEBERERR
diluted per share from continuing HEEE
operations (56,243) (2,856)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for basic and diluted loss per share.

For discontinued operation

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the
discontinued operation is HK15.09 cents per share
(2020: HKO0.25 cents loss per share), based on the
profit for the year from discontinued operation of
approximately HK$106,232,000 (2020: HK$1,720,000
loss for the year from discontinued operation) and the
denominators detailed above for the basic and diluted
earnings per share.

PAAAEE EXFHARAERERNLEE
EEMAEMER -

ERIEELEEBEERERARBERT A
FR15.098 (T -2 F FRERE
0.2581l)  TERERIEKEEEKER
% F #9106,232,0008 T ( — T - T 4F:
B4R | FAC A SIS F N E5181,720,00078 7T )
Ko b 3 it Bt B AR K K B e & FI BT B
PREBLE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 E T - — &+ _-_A=+—HIEE

16.

152

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. WE -BERRHE

Furniture
and Office ~ Company Motor
Buildings fixtures  equipment equipment  Machinery vehicles Total
BF BRAREE BLZERE ERRE B RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET FET TET TET FET TAT
COST BA
At 1 January 2020 “T-Z%-f—-A 53,560 31,756 3,979 3,946 88,448 2,115 183,804
Additions ﬁE 2,735 829 1,684 105 663 = 6,016
Disposals & = (663) - (1,084) - (928) (2,675)
Exchange realignment S 3,723 58 173 208 2,637 37 6,836
At 31 December 2020 and R=ZF=T#+_-A
1 January 2021 =+—-Hk
I 60,018 31,980 5,836 3,175 91,748 1,224 193,981
Additions RE 189 = = 2,979 1,004 = 4172
Disposal of a subsidiary ~ {1& — R B2 Al
(Note 33) (#17#33) (29,620) (2,957) 271) - (1,424) = (34,272)
Exchange realignment S 1,541 147 64 74 433 10 2,269
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—%
+-A=t-8H 32,128 29,170 5,629 6,228 91,761 1,234 166,150
ACCUMULATED EAHERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-Z%F
—A—-H 16,506 28,881 3,789 2,386 82,420 2,110 136,092
Provided for the year EREB 1,627 846 175 579 2,607 ® 5,839
Eliminated on disposals & R - (423) - (1,084) - (928) (2,435)
Exchange realignment i 5 E 1,385 195 67 125 2,259 37 4,068
At 31 December 2020 and R-ZT-ZF
1 January 2021 +ZA=+-BR
—Z--%-f—H 19,5618 29,499 4,031 2,006 87,286 1,224 143,564
Provided for the year EREE 1,368 906 47 976 1,327 - 4,994
Eliminated on disposal of a  {H& — & B 2 7lF
subsidiary (Note 33) WsE (Ha233) (8,955) (2,675) (271) - (1,350) = (13,251)
Exchange realignment IS 575 118 20 43 252 10 1,018
At 31 December 2021 R=Zz—
—A=1+-H 12,506 27,848 4,197 3,025 87,5615 1,234 136,325
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2021 RZB-—%
+-A=+—H 19,622 1,322 1,432 3,203 4,246 - 29,825
At 31 December 2020 i
+ZA=1+-H 40,500 2,481 1,805 1,169 4,462 - 50,417
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

2% - 3% or over the
remaining term of the
relevant lease, if shorter

Buildings

Furniture and fixtures 20% - 33%

Office equipment 20% - 33%

Computer equipment 20% - 33%

Machinery 14% - 20%
20% — 30%

LEASES 17.

Motor vehicles

(a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated

MR- BER&E @

NEWE- -BERKREEREB DULEKSE

$EJ;/\—FE$§+§%% :
BT 2% - 3% A MK

THEH(AREERE)

20% - 33%

20% - 33%

20% — 33%

2% 14% — 20%
R 20% - 30%
HE

(@ FHEZERHEAEE
(i) REE B BT EAEE

statement of financial position B £
The consolidated statement of financial FREMBRARYRTI
position shows the following amounts FRAMEENSH:
relating to leases:
Reconciliation of Land use
right-of-use assets Buildings rights Total
EREEEHR BFE LtiHFERARE et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHEIT
At 1 January 2020 RZE-_EF—H—H 812 7,202 8,014
Addition NE 2,091 - 2,091
Lease modification HEBK (388) - (388)
Depreciation for the year FRME (1,300) (217) (1,517)
Exchange realignment b 5, 58 B (3) 631 628
At 31 December 2020 N_EZTF
and 1 January 2021 +=—A=+—HK
—E-—%—H—H 1,212 7,616 8,828
Addition NE 22,070 - 22,070
Depreciation for the year FAME (2,900) (218) (3,118)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHERQA
(Note 33) (H1#£33) - (2,624) (2,624)
Exchange realignment ME 3 38 B 286 199 485
At 31 December 2021 RITE-—%F
HZ B=H-—H 20,668 4,973 25,641
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T - —F+ A =+—HILFE

17. LEASES (Continued)

154

(a)

17. #HE®

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

(a)

FREEEREESR® (H)

(Continued)
(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated (i) RERE B B T2 A BEE
statement of financial position (Continued) £ BE ()
Reconciliation of lease liabilities Buildings
HEEEYHER BF
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZTF—H—H 814
Addition NE 2,091
Lease modification HEEH (397)
Interest expense FERX 49
Lease payments HENK (1,288)
Interest paid B A (49)
Exchange realignment ME 3, G B (3)
At 31 December 2020 and RZBE_TF+_A=+—HK
1 January 2021 —E2-—4%—HF—H 1,217
Addition NE 22,069
Interest expense FERXZ 839
Lease payments HEMK (2,522)
Interest paid BAAH A (839)
Exchange realignment PE X 38 B 291
At 31 December 2021 R_ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H 21,055
2021 2020
—B-—F —T_TF
Lease liabilities HK$’000 HK$'000
HEaE FET FAET
Current mE 5,497 309
Non-current FETR & 15,558 908
21,055 1,217
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

LEASES (Continued) 17. #HE @

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (@ FHEZSEREESEH)

(Continued)

(i)  Amount recognised in the consolidated (i) RHESEZRAMEZENK
statement of profit or loss and other mERAERY L
comprehensive income
Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets 2021 2020
FHEEENTEER —E-—F —EZTF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Buildings B3 2,900 1,300

Land use rights 4 Hb(F A R 218 217

Total #ET 3,118 1,517

Interest expense on HEBEMNERX

lease liabilities 839 49
Expenses related to B35GB FE S AR RE A 2

short-term leases 1,961 2,327

(iiij)  Others (i) Ef
During the year ended 31 December BHE-_ZT-_—F+=A
2021, the total cash outflow for leases “+—HLEFE HE®
amounted to HK$5,322,000 (2020: 3 & 48 %8 /35,322,000
HK$3,664,000). BT (ZF ZFT F

3,664,000/ 7T ) °

(iv)  The Group’s leasing activities (iv) XEBHEZE

The Group leases various offices and
factories. Rental contracts are typically
made for fixed periods of two years, but
may have extension options as described
in (v) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used
as security for borrowing purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE T =-—F+_A=+—HILFE

17.

18.

156

LEASES (Continued) 17. #HE®

(a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (a FAEEZEEREEEE W
(Continued)
(v)  Extension and termination options (v) ZERRARILEER

Extension and termination options are
included in a number of property and
equipment leases across the Group.
There are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Group’s operations. The

AEERZNERZBEH
ETHRE R RKLE

B ARRAAKEEERE
HEMAEEMS &AL
EEBREUH-FIRBER
ERIEREEERASE

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T

extension and termination options held mIESHBAITE-
are exercisable only by the Group and
not by the respective lessor.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. BEWHE
Fair value A¥E
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2020 RZE_TF—H— 14,750
Decrease in fair value recognised REZEBRZA ?Tﬁﬁii\

in profit or loss (500)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R_-Z-_ZF+_A=+—HK
—E-—%—H—H 14,250
Decrease in fair value recognised REZERZAFERD
in profit or loss (750)
At 31 December 2021 R-_E_—F+-H=+—H 13,500
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value (Continued)

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2021 and 2020 have been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group.

The fair value was determined using direct comparison
approach assuming sales of the properties in their
respective existing status and by making reference
to comparable sales evidences as available on the
market. There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

The properties were valued using the direct
comparison method using the sales comparison
approach based on recent sales of comparable
properties in the area. The key input under this
approach are the price per square feet on saleable
floor area basis from current year sales of comparable
lots of properties in the area (location and size) and
which maximise the use of observable market data and
reply as little as possible on entity-specific estimates.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were
no transfers into or out of level 2 or any other level
(2020: level 2).

18.

BREWE &
QAFE (#)

AEENGEROFEURDAEHE
AEENMBENERDARERIIER
REWE UTRABAFEEAFE-

ARERENER B —FR_F=
BE+ ==+ —H2ATFEDREA
SEBREE WA ARTEEER
E-AFHENEERSEBNERD
AU % B AT 2 i R -

RFEDRBEERLE LA REEEY
ENEEERALBBE2EMHABTZ
AEURHEREMEET NBEFE
RAZBETEAREZE-

RESMEZRFER WEZES R
REMRESBMAE-

BEELBATRIEZ IR A L&Y%
M EE SR A E LB A M EE
THE-ZAZEHNEEHABERZMH
EEZEHECVMENEFHESR (LE
ERMNBENEREABRBEAENTTE
FRRER A& AR E #F B A8
ROMBHBITEAIERLOEFETER
MEst- Bz T -_—F+-_A=+—
AtFEE TETHGHERE ZRHHE
ERAB P EANE L (2T F:
BR) o
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. BEWE ®
Fair value (Continued) DEE (&)
Details of the Group’s investment properties and AEBEEMEFBREBENR -
information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 T FRZEEFF+_A=F+—HZ
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: ANFEEREHAT
Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 2 2021
R=B=-—%F
+t=RA=+-—8H
EZR ZAYE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Commercial properties units UREBZEmBAEEN
located in Hong Kong 13,500 13,500
Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 2 2020
RZZEZZF
+=-—A=+—H
S ZRYE
HK$'000 HK$°000
FAET FAET
Commercial properties units URBBZAYEEN
located in Hong Kong 14,250 14,250
19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REBELENER
Details of the Group’s interests in joint ventures are as REEREGECENERTBOT
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Cost of investment in joint ventures ~ R A & E KR ERK A 5 5
Share of post-acquisition profit and  FE{G W EE & )% 7 & H b 2 T W 2§
other comprehensive income 3,400 5,184
3,405 5,189
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

On 11 January 2017, PT Design International Limited
(“PT Design International”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and an independent third party
entered into an agreement for the establishment of PT
& PL China Limited (“PT & PL China”), a Hong Kong
incorporated company with issued share capital of
HK$10,000. PT Design International subscribed for
5,100 ordinary shares in PT & PL China, representing
51% of the entire issued share capital. Upon the
completion of the capital contribution, the Group holds
51% equity interest in PT & PL China. The Group has
the right to appoint one out of two voting directors
in the board of directors of PT & PL China in which
the decisions about the relevant activities of PT & PL
China require the unanimous consent of the director
from both PT Design International and the other
shareholder. In this regard, the investment in PT & PL
China is accounted for as joint venture of the Group.
At the same time, PT & PL China formed a wholly
owned subsidiary in the PRC, PT & PL Architectural
Design Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (“PT & PL
Architectural Design”). Hence, the Group indirectly
owned 51% equity interest in this company.

Particulars of the joint ventures of the Group at 31
December 2021 and 2020 are set out as follow:

19.

REELEWER @

RZE—tHF—HA+—H XRARZE2E
MEBARMEERTEEER AR (18
ERRETEIRR ) BB E = F KRR
mM(FRE)BRAR ([HERWK(F
B)| —HREBFMAL 2R H
B EITRA A10,0008 ) 5] L &% ©
MERTEBERERERN (P E)H
5100 @B (HE2MBEBTRAN
51% T ) FE R AEBFERER
W(RE) 51 %Kk E - AEBBEEZENA
EmMM (PR ESShMEBERRRE
WMEFz — HPBBEHBERMAR(FER)
HEEBHRREGSIMERTEE R
EMmBERROEEN—BRAEZE -t R
HERMN(FRE)NREUREEREE B
FAR-RAR-AERMA(FE)ESEH
KL TEEWNBARMERMN (LE)E
HERFTBABRAA ([MAERA(LEE)
BEZ]D Bl -AKERERS Z
N AS1%H) o

RZE-_—FK=_F
=t+—HB AEEEE D

>H¥HI
Z
]_j'-y:
If
=
—

Principal
Place of place of Proportion of ownership Proportion of voting rights
Name of entity incorporation  business interest held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
rE@fiEZ rE@EfEZ
EBaRB AMAILE  TEEELY BEERRILA RAEL A TEER
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E2z-§ —Z-%E —2--% S 23
PT & PL China (8 & @t (R El) BRAH) Hong Kong Hong Kong 51% 51% 50% 50% Provision of comprehensive
architectural services
HEDMK(RE) ik ik RE2EEERE
PT & PL Architectural Design* PRC PRC 51% 51% 50% 50% Provision of comprehensive
(B@H(L8)BERHEAERAR) architectural services
BB (L8) RER: e P REZARERB
o English name for identification purpose only. * RN ATEEMHHER

AEBAEELCXRZWHEENBM BRI
T THMBERBBRANSELERE
FEEUHREENRREZFEMBEHER
PRRE®e

Summarised financial information in respect of
the Group’s joint ventures is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint venture’s consolidated
financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.
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19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 19. REBELENER
2021 2020
—EC-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
As at 31 December: R+t=—BA=+—8:

Current assets mENEE 42,821 43,059
Non current assets IERBEE 154 205
Current liabilities mEBEE (36,299) (33,089)
Net assets BEFHE 6,676 10,175

Year ended 31 December: BE+-HA=+t—HILEE:
Revenue WA 37,748 31,949
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE) &5 (3,508) 2,697
Other comprehensive income B 2wk 9 198
Total comprehensive (expense)/income 2 (Fix) Wz 4% (3,499) 2,795
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 19. REELENER W
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial MBI ERBEENG S EHRERA
information to the carrying amount of the interest in a ﬁEwE’JE/\\—F’ﬁéé{ﬁﬁ Rz REE
joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial ZHERWMT
statements:
2021 2020
:g:—qi — ? — g
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net assets of PT & PL China HEGmAR(RR) & EFE 6,676 10,175
Proportion of the Group’s ownership  ANEBERHEZRMA (FRE) 2
interest in PT & PL China AR 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEERBERA (FE) 2
interest in PT & PL China w2 REE 3,405 5,189
INVENTORIES 20. BFE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$000
FETT FET
Raw materials and consumables R BB FE 18,541 19,267
Work in progress TR 18,496 9,012
Finished goods 2UpK 21,094 22,310
58,131 50,589

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s inventories are net of allowance of
approximately HK$11,095,000 (2020: HK$3,269,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised an provision of allowance on certain slow
moving inventories of approximately HK$7,826,000
(2020: reversal of its provision of inventories of
approximately HK$2,614,000) and included in cost of
sales.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, reversal of
allowance for inventories of approximately HK$81,000
(2020: HK$361,000) has been recognised and
included in cost of sales as a result of the subsequent
sales.

R-TE-_—F+_A=+—H8 &x5E
FERRBEED & # 411,095,000
BT (—Z -F4F 3,269,000/ 7T) °

REBE_T=-—F+-_A=+—HLHF
B ALERETHHEHTENREEY
7,826,000 L (ZE T F O HF
B E 42,614,000 T) Wt AHE
RS o

REBEE_T-_—F+-_A=+—HLF

B BHRETBREHE ASEERER
77 & B & #481,0008 L (Z T =&

F:361,00087T) * Wt AEEMA ©
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21.

162

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ESREMEWERR
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Trade receivables B 5 B ER K
— sales of connectivity products —HEEKE® 83,011 51,886
— provision of comprehensive —REEEEERE
architectural services 9,157 6,043
92,168 57,929
Less: loss allowance W IR (7,588) (6,170)
84,580 51,759
Prepayments SEENE O] 14,695 10,508
Refundable rental deposits AREIAEZ® 2,806 418
Value-added tax receivables JE Ui 1 (B AR 12,465 4,441
Receivable from the sale proceed of KB HE&E—RHHE QG H
disposal of a subsidiary & P18 3RI8 2 B W IE 61,105 =
Others (Note) Eb (FzE) 22,945 2,158
114,016 17,525
Less: loss allowance W IR (1,389) -
112,627 17,525
197,207 69,284
Note: B 5 -
The amount of approximately HK$18,419,000 included in others sFAE MBI FRIB4918,419,0008 ST MBI E =
represents the advance to the independent third parties and is FEF WHEHERT_@AREE - ZREER
expected to be settled within 12 months. The amount is unsecured EIRE R B -

and interest-free.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for credit losses, presented based on
the invoice dates at the end of the reporting period.

EZREAMEWRR (5

X

RIE K &%?H%EWIHHF
EEBEREBIEDREERRZREKE DT
L

lf

Total

@t
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0-30 days 0%230H 32,742 19,958
31-120 days 312120H 45,610 30,390
121-180 days 121£180H 6,090 657
Over 180 days HBim180H 138 754
84,580 51,759

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customers’ credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring
attributed to customers are reviewed regularly.

For the sales of connectivity products, the Group
allows an average credit period ranging from 15 to 120
days (2020: 15 to 120 days) to its trade customers.

As for the provision of comprehensive architectural
services, the Group does not have a standardised and
universal credit period granted to its customers. The
credit period granted to individual customer is within
90 days in general, which the Group considered on a
case-by-case basis, depending on the credibility and
reputation of the customers and as stipulated in the
project contract.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note
34(b)(ii).

PEREHE P A AR BT
BEMERER RHRTESERR
e AREE R TS HELRER

REEERERMS ALXEHLKTES
EEZEHEEHN F15E120H (=
T _THFE15%120H) °

PREHREEEZERBEMS AKRELE
MEEPETHEERLS —WEEH K
TENEFPHNEER —RAB/0B A - It
DAEEGRFEFEEEBENRIEA
BRMETAZE REJNBRETERE
MmEE -

B (B B 17 7 1B B0 B 5234 (b)(ii) ©
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22.

23.

24.

164

CONTRACT ASSETS 22, BHEE
2021 2020
—B=-—F —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Provision of comprehensive REZEEERS
architectural services 5,266 3,052
The contract assets primarily relate to the Group'’s right AGHEETERBRAEERE THR LR
to consideration for work completed and not billed MEILREKRRKENEN REAREH
because the rights are conditioned on the Group's BFBRRAEER RS ABEREZE
future performance in achieving specified milestones at EERBETEEENARRE-RE
the reporting date on the comprehensive architectural BRENK R ERGR SHEEERE
services. The contract assets are transferred to trade BEORWER - AEBBERENELD
receivables when the rights become unconditional. ETEREE BAYEEEBREES
The Group typically transfer contract assets to trade FE W RR K o
receivables upon achieving the specified milestones in
the contracts.
The Group classifies these contract assets as current AEEBZSEENEE»BERRY R
because the Group expects to realise them in its AaASBEEHRN—REERPALZR
normal operating cycle. REBE-
Details of the impairment assessment are set out in R (B B 1 FE 1B A B 5234 (b)) i) ©
Note 34b(ii).
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE 23. EH—BEEELXFE
At 31 December 2021, the amount is unsecured, R-_E-—F+_A=+—H %ZxHE
interest-free and repayable on demand. BERER 2BRIZEREE-
The management considered that the amount due EREERAE EBR—HEE&ECERIEN
from a joint venture to be low credit risk and thus no EFEERBEBRIE Bt F R EERRE
impairment provision is recognised during the year. o
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24, SBITHBRES

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits
with the original maturity of three months or less of
HK$52,000 (2020: HK$20,000) at fixed interest rates
ranging from 0.32% to 0.66% (2020: 0.32% to 0.66%)
per annum and bank balances of HK$83,606,000
(2020: HK$55,914,000) at variable interest rates with
effective interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.30%
(2020: 0.01% to 0.30%) per annum and cash balances
of HK$474,000 (2020: HK$469,000).

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T

BT ERIBAA=Z@ARURN
EFEBNF0.32%F0.66% (T =F
F:0.32%%£0.66% ) Z BT X B 2
HHISRTTF3X52,0008 T (— - T4 :

20,000/ 7T ) R IZ B B F F & 1 F0.01%
20.30% (ZE=_FF :0.01%=0.30%)
22 B R K&t B 2 $R1T 45 $283,606,000
BT (T T4 :55,914,000/& 7T ) KA
MR & E 84740008 T (ZEZFTF:

469,000/ 7T ) °
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TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 25.
ACCRUALS

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

BEZENERT HUBENRIAKER
gH

RBERR ZBZAH2I2BEFHRE
MERRZ AR DTN T

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables B 5 R RR
Within 30 days 30H A 33,169 13,247
31-90 days 31290H 23,289 21,535
90-150 days 91%150H 4,363 7,524
Over 150 days HBiE150H 7,170 3,092
67,991 45,398
Staff salaries and welfare payables EBNEIHSREF 15,016 12,856
Refundable rental deposits AIRREERS 323 260
Value-added tax and FE I8 E R & E Ath Y IE
other tax payables 855 1,421
Accrued operating expenses BRI &R X 35,053 18,201
Others (Note) Hh (B7at) 17,950 625
69,197 33,363
137,188 78,761
Note: it -

Included in the others in 2021, approximately HK$14,140,000
represents the amount due to Dongguan Asia-Link, which was
disposed during the year.

The Group has been granted an average credit period
ranging from 30 to 150 days from its trade suppliers
for both years.

RZZTEZ—F 5 AEAMH FKIEL14,140,0007%8
THEEMNRETHORE MEREEHEAFENR
o

AEBRREFEHEEE S HERK
FEHNFI0E150B W EEH -
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26.

27.

166

Bt 35 AR MY RE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. AWEE
2021 2020
—B=-—F —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Sales of connectivity products HEERER 1,645 1,656
Provision of comprehensive REZEEERS
architectural services 18 -
Total e 1,663 1,556
The contract liabilities represent (i) the Group’s ABHEERIANEB RN ERERMK
advance received to deliver the connectivity products BIM R RGP 2 T EE R m Uk
and (i) advances received to render comprehensive BRI E K -
architectural services.
Revenue recognised during the year ended MEEERERME  EAFFAFINELD
31 December 2021 that was included in the ABETREBEE-_S-_—F+=_A=+—
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year is BIEFE®ERHRAE419,000% 7T (=
HK$419,000 (2020: HK$3,862,000) in respect T T4 13,862,000 7C) c RAFEI
of sales of connectivity products. There was no EERE L —FEEBITNEOETHE
revenue recognised in the current year that related to FAEIUL A o
performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior
year.
BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27. SMBITRHEMER
2021 2020
—B-—F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FEIT
Bank borrowings IRITER 43,127 =
Other borrowings E g5 8,548 =
51,675 -

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) BITREMER ()
2021 2020
—EC-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Carrying amounts repayable*: AR T HEEENEREE"

On demand or within one year BERIR—FNR 51,675 =
Amount shown under current liabilities 3 {EREN B &4 %8 51,675 =
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates * NESBDHBRBEE R GBEME MO EERK

set out in the loan agreements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank and
other borrowings of HK$15,593,000 are denominated
at HK$ while the remaining bank borrowings of
HK$36,082,000 are denominated in RMB.

The bank borrowing of approximately HK$7,045,000
is guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Company that
carries interest at 2.4% per annual plus 3-months
HIBOR. The effective interest rates of the secured
bank borrowing at 31 December 2021 were 2.90% per
annum.

The bank borrowings of RMB19,500,000 (equivalent
to HK$23,851,000) is secured by the Company’s
buildings with aggregate net carrying amount of
HK$9,892,000 that carry fixed interest rate of 4.55%
to 4.86% per annum. The bank borrowing is used to
finance the future development project.

The bank borrowings of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$12,231,000) are guaranteed by a subsidiary of
the Company. They carry fixed interest rate of 4.9%
per annum. The bank borrowing is used to finance the
future development project.

The remaining unsecured other borrowings of
approximately HK$8,548,000 carry fixed interest at
12% to 18%.

BB -

R-ZTE-—F+-_A=+—8B K&£H
/)R 17 & H th £& 5%15,593,0007% 7T T3 LA
VS JLET A ¢ 1M 88 T 8R 17 18 736,082,000/
TLRIAAREGTE -

R1T 2 497,045,000 7T Ty AR A &) —
BB ARIREER FFEE24%5
M=EABBRITRAERB - R T —
F+-_A=+—HB AEBRERITEID
BERFFEB2.90% °

R ITHE XA RK19,500,0007T (FHE R
23,851,000/ 70) AR AR BRE/FES
0,892,000 T EFEE | EEF
& B4 55%%F4.86% B B@HRITHE KT
BRAERKRERBBREES -

iR 17 15 ;A R #10,000,0007T (& R
12,231,000/ 7T) JhE AR R —EH B A
AIRHEER BEFHNEE49% -FH
BITERDARARKREEEEREER

S
e

BRI 1 B E A 15 3K 498,548,000 7T
HEERZE B12%ZE18% o
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28.

168

SHARE CAPITAL 28. A&
Number of Share
capital
B EBE B2
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each SFRMEE0.01E T2 L@k
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2020, RZZE-_ZEF—H—H"
31 December 2020, T TF+_A=+—8"
1 January 2021 and —E-—F—AF—HK
31 December 2021 —E—4F+=ZA=+—H 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHBE:
At 1 January 2020 RZZE_TF—H—H 6,400
Issue of new shares (Note) BITEAR D (HI3E) 640
At 31 December 2020, RZE_ZEF+_A=+—8"
1 January 2021 and —E—F—H—HEK
31 December 2021 —E2-—4%+=-A=+—H 7,040

Note:

On 3 June 2020, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent placed
64,000,000 placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.1 per placing
share to certain independent places. The net proceeds from the

Bt -

Fic & B% 17 - SR B8 P 5

subscription is net of related issued costs and expenses. ARHAL -

Following the completion of the placing of shares on 22 June 2020,

/8 £k

RIE-_TFNA=H AR BEERIETL
REHz Bt RERBREEEESRESER
120.13% 7T A & T 18 3 & Bt A B2 £64,000,000/%
FRIEFEC MR AT

EREEERNNR_-_F_EFAA-_+T-BEX

the gross proceeds from the placing amount to HK$6,400,000, and 1% - Bt & FT 15 FXTE 48 58 56,400,000/ 7T+ 1 A& 41

the net proceeds from the placing of HK$5,438,000, after deduction
of the placing commission and other related expenses of HK$322,000
and HK$640,000 respectively, were credited to the Company’s share
capital and share premium account respectively.

Bk

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T

R & A & R H 48 FE 7 X 9 511322,000% 7T &
640,000/ 1% - IE & FT 13
B BESBEE DR ARNRRRARRKMD R

X IE ¥ 58 /5,438,000
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OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor

The Group leases out investment properties and
buildings under operating leases. The leases typically
run for an initial period of 2-3 years, with an option
to renew the lease after that date at which time all
terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually
increased every 2-3 years to reflect market rentals.
None of the leases includes variable lease payments.

Rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$1,836,000 (2020: HK$1,997,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for future minimum lease
payments as follows:

29.

REEYN
AEERHBA

AEBRBRLEHEHEREDENE
FT-HENMBHER -—KRB2EIF I
EEGEZRAZREEEE EREE
MERAEGR-HENK—KREB2E3
FEM—KX URBRTSHEE -HEE
MEERFEAEHENK

FRETHRE 2 S WAL A1,836,000
BT (ZZE-FF:1,997,0008T) °

RBEPRR ARERBEFFINZARK
REESHOT:

2021 2020

—E=-—F —T-TH

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —F A 2,223 1,989
In the second to third year inclusive ~F_FEZF=-F (BIFEHEWF) 1,087 348
3,310 2337

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme
adopted on 13 December 2001 (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees, the Company may grant options
to executive directors and full-time employees of the
Group to subscribe for shares of the Company.

30.

BRESTE

BREARAR_-_FTZTE-—F+=-A+=H
RANBBESRAERER <BIRE
&l ([5H&1])  ARBAI M AKEHATT
EELE2BEERTRBARRKNO 2
fE R HE
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30.

31.

170

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors or their associates in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital or with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of options. Options may be
exercised at any time from the thirteenth month from
the date of grant to the fifth anniversary of the date of
grant. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company, and will be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

No share option was granted under the Scheme since
its adoption.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme and a retirement benefit scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong and Taiwan,
respectively. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% and 6%
of relevant payroll costs to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme and the defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme respectively, which contribution
is matched by employees. For contribution to the
Mandatory Provident Fund, the maximum amount is
HK$1,500 per month.

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T

30.

31.

AR A B )

AEARRBBRELRI A REFEA
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

Eligible staff of subsidiaries operating in the PRC
currently participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute an amount
of 10% on the covered payroll of its employees to
the central pension scheme for the funding of the
retirement benefits. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of the eligible employees of the PRC
subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total
contribution charged to profit or loss amounted to
approximately HK$2,910,000 (2020: HK$1,514,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities
within the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the Company,
the Group will balance its  overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues
as well as issue of new debts.
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33. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 33. HE—HKEAT
For detail in Note 11, the Group disposed of its entire AEER-_ZT-—F+A-+-HHE
investment in the Dongguan Asia-Link on 22 October HRREZEHANE2HERE FREEME
2021. 11 o
The net assets of Dongguan Asia-Link at the date of REEnHALEAHNEEFEDNT

disposal were as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KEBEFENEEREBEZIN
control was lost

Period ended

22 October
2021
B=E
—E-—F
+HA=+=H
IEEA
HK$’000
FET
Property, plant and equipment W BB kFEE 21,021
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,624
Other receivables H b I BR 3K 11,419
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIAS 1,351
Other payables Hoth & BR 3K (4,370)
32,045
Release of translation reserve upon RHE— RN B R R AR IE 5
disposal of a subsidiary (2,828)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 29,217
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE MBS
Period ended
22 October
2021
Bz
—E=—F
+A=+=H
1IE RS
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration HeNE 122,210
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (29,217)
Wavier of the intra-group transactions EERNATIRERINEAE 14,892
Gain on disposal of Dongguan Asia-Link HERSDH K (HE7B)
(Note 7B) 107,885
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DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of subsidiary

HE—BHBQR (@)

HEMNBRARAEENRERAFHE

2021
—_E-—F
HK$’000
FET
Consideration received in cash and NIBe RERIREHEE A WERAKE
cash equivalents 122,210
Less: Receivable from the sale BoREHE BB R AR
proceed of disposal of a subsidiary & BT T8 2 W FR IR (61,105)
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of  J& : & HERITEEMHNIR S (1,351)
59,754
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS £@MIE
(a) Categories of financial instruments (@) =®MIASHE
2021 2020
—E-——F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Financial assets EHMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost & # 4K N3 (E 2 & f & &
(including bank balances and cash) (BERITEHEIRE) 254,186 110,748
Financial liabilities SRBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost LAB S AT EN SR A E 188,008 77,340

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, amount due from
joint ventures, bank balances and cash, trade
payables, other payables and accruals and
bank and other borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments included market risk (currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

(b)
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34.

174

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. €@MIAM
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) <SEEREEBRZRBER4H
policies (Continued)
(i)  Market risk (i) 5 E B
Currency risk B 2
Several subsidiaries of the Company KRB ZEBRWEB QA%
have foreign currency sales and BASNES B iEE KK
purchases, which expose the Group to i S ST NI SRER DE Q)
foreign currency risk. The Group currently B R B o AN & B IR AR 0 A
does not have a foreign currency RIS HNES SRR o AT -
hedging policy. However, management AEEEREE—BERE
of the Group monitors foreign exchange EREBIGNEZEE R
exposure and will consider hedging b ZINE R B o
significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.
2021 2020
—E--F —E_EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Assets BE
USD (Note 1) T (FsE1) 7,812 12,976
New Taiwan dollar (‘NTD") ek ([#aekl) 1,143 326
RMB ARE (TAR®]) 304 416
Liabilities =N
NTD Mak 3,219 2,073
RMB AR¥E 24 24
Note 1: BT -

Functional currencies of the respective subsidiaries
are RMB/HKS. Since HK$ is pegged to USD and
immaterial monetary items denominated in USD
against the functional currency of RMB, no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T

HEMBARZEEERAR
T e R TT B X T B 48
BUAXTFEZERHBE Xk
EBARBAFTER BHAUEL
SIS REE DA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK E
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

()

Market risk (Continueqd)
Currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% (2020: 5%) increase or
decrease in USD against RMB and NTD.
5% (2020: 5%) is the sensitivity rate
used by management for the assessment
of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the
year end for a 5% (2020: 5%) change
in the foreign currency rates. A positive
(negative) number below indicates an
increase (a decrease) in post-tax profit
(2020: a decrease (an increase) in post-
tax loss) where the respective functional
currencies strengthen by 5% (2020: 5%)
against the relevant currency. For a 5%
(2020: 5%) weakening of US$ against
the relevant foreign currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit and other equity and the balances
below would be negative.

34.

—E--F
HK$°000
TET

o

i

(b) <2REMBREEEEREXE S

()

Impact of RMB
ARB2%E
2021

—Z-%F
HK$'000

FET

5 m B (%)
EEmE (&)

TRFIIAEEHETR
ARERFTEEFERE
E5% (ZE-_FF:5%)
MERE - EEEBIFEA
T 7] BE MY [E R & ) 85 BT A
M EELE A% (ZF
ZEF5%) MRERE DN
ABERTENIINEE
BE®IBEE WERFRIE
ERESR (T T F:
5% )FBEBE T A
B UTEH(BE)RR
Remagmord) (=
E_EF -HEBERD
(& hn) ) - H 188 Ih B8
EEHEEEEAESS
—ETF 5%) pE
TR AR SN R EE5% (=
E_ZTF:5%)ME HH
wmA R EMEREERSE
BERRMEZE BUTHE
BigAa 8-

Impact of NTD
awzEeg
2021

—E--F
HK$’000
FET

2020 2020

—E-TE

—R ==

HK$'000
TET

HERET/ (58)
pd

Impact on profit/(loss) for
the year

11

15 (66) (78)
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

()

176

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to its fixed-rate bank
borrowings. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy
in relation to fair value interest rate risk
and cash flow interest rate risk.

However, management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure on an
ongoing basis and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise. The Group’s exposures
to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk section of this
note.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate bank balances (see Note 24).
The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arises.

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the exposure
to interest rate for the bank and other
borrowings at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the bank and other borrowings
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rate.

If interest rate had been 100 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, profit after tax for the
year ended 31 December 2021 would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$130,200. This is mainly attributable
to the Company’s exposure to interest
rate risk on the variable-rate bank loan.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group’s principal financial assets
are trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables
and contract assets. The Group is
exposed to concentration of credit risk
as a substantial portion of its sales is
generated from a limited number of
customers. At 31 December 2021,
the top five customers of the Group
accounted for about 74.2% (2020:
66.2%) of the Group’s trade receivables
and contract assets, all of which are
engaged in business of connectivity
products with good reputation. In order
to minimise the credit risk, management
of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of
credit limit, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each
debt on a collective and on-going basis
to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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34.

178

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The credit risk on bank balances is
limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk

In order to minimise credit risk,
the Group has tasked its operation
management committee to develop and
maintain the Group’s credit risk grading
to categorise exposures according
to their degree of risk of default. The
credit rating information is supplied
by independent rating agencies where
available and, if not available, the
operation management committee
uses other publicly available financial
information and the Group’s own trading
records to rate its major customers and
other debtors. The Group’s exposure and
the credit ratings of its counterparties
are continuously monitored and
the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following

@I A
(b) SEAE

EEABERBE (&)

(i) 1EEEEREEFGE)

AEBENAEEERRF
R EBE T D8

categories:
Internal Trade receivables/ Other financial
Credit Rating  Description contract assets assets
ERRKER
ABEEFR RS BHNEE HtEmEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default  Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
(simplified approach)
ERR HFHHEHARBE FERREEEER AR RAEEER
(L)
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
but usually settle the amounts (simplified approach)
BRELE EBALTAHEN BRFTCENTE HFEPRHCERR AR RAEEER
(L)
Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL -
credit risk since initial recognition (simplified approach) not credit-impaired
through information developed internally
or external resources
N REEESRBNBRRNERER FERREEEER REERENTED
FERBENSERLBEEN (L) BHEEER
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL -
credit impaired (simplified approach) credit-impaired
BB BREBETREAEDHRESAE FERRSEEER EELEERENT
(L) BHRBEERR
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written-off Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
s EERBTEBARAREMBEEER  HEOME TED M

AEEYEERANE A
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. &€WMIAMm
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) <SEEREEBRZRBER4H)

policies (Continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk
exposures of the Group’s financial assets
and contract assets, which are subject

(i) 1EEEEREEFGE)

TREIAKEEAEITE
HEEERIGANERE
ERGHNEENFEERR

to ECL assessment: &
Internal 12-month Gross carrying Loss Net carrying
2021 Notes credit rating or lifetime ECL amount allowance amount
128 A7 EH
ZE--F Wi ABERFR EIREER BREE BERE RERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FéET
Financial assets at
amortised cost
RRSBATENERER
Bank balances and cash 24 Low risk 12-month ECL 84,132 - 84,132
RITEHRRIE el 12EAEHEEEE
Other receivables 21 Low risk 12-month ECL 86,856 (1,389) 85,467
H o IR ERE R 12EAEHEESE
Trade receivables 21 Low risk Lifetime ECL 92,168 (7,588) 84,580
(simplified approach)
g HEKER ERE R FEREREEEE
(Bt A%)
Amount due from a joint venture 23 Low risk 12-month ECL 7 - 7
Y—RaErERTE ERE R 12EAEHEESE
263,163 (8,977) 254,186
Other items
HitER
Contract assets 22 Low risk Lifetime ECL 5,271 (5) 5,266
(simplified approach)
BHEE B FREEBEEER
(BftA%)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. E@MIA®
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) =2REMREEEEREE®)
policies (Continued)
(ii) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) 1EEEEREEFGE)
(Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk TRETAREEBFESTE
exposures of the Group’s financial assets HEEEBRTIERNERE
and contract assets, which are subject ERGEHNEENEERR
to ECL assessment: FE1E
Internal 12-month or Gross carrying Loss Net carrying
2020 Notes credit rating lifetime ECL amount allowance amount
REATFES
—Z-%F WE ABEATHR EBHEEESR ARAEE EEERE REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Financial assets at
amortised cost
RRERAGTENERER
Bank balances and cash 24 Low risk 12-month ECL 56,403 - 56,403
ROEHRAS iYL 12 EHEEER
Other receivables 21 Low risk 12-month ECL 2,576 - 2,576
Hfth e MR X iy 1EAESEEEE
Trade receivables 21 Low risk Lifetime ECL 57,929 (6,170) 51,759
(simplified approach)
2 5 YRR iy FREARBEEEER
(BknE)
Amount due from a joint venture 23 Low risk 12-month ECL 10 - 10
[l —HEERENFE iy 1EAESEEEE
116,918 (6,170) 110,748
Other items
HiER
Contract assets 22 Low risk Lifetime ECL 3,052 - 3,052
(simplified approach)
BHEE [iyEN FEABBEERE
(BlknE)

The credit risk on trade receivables under
sales of connectivity products is limited
because the counterparties are with low
loss rates which is estimated based on
historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are
adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or
effort.

HERREMNE S EK
EXEERRER RHA
BEFITHNERXRE:
ERBBREIREREK
BRRFEMAEREHNE
SEBREEOXRMGE L
BAETUGEKRALSE A
AESHAEEEREL

g
Of]

ﬁEko
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34.

182

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

34. TEMIH®@

(b)

tREREEEEREE (&)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) 1EEEEREEFGE)
(Continued)
The following tables provide information TREIEERNEE]E
about the Group’s exposure to credit risk S REWERREHEZ BB AT
and ECLs for trade receivables according AENEERR RBEBHE
to their past due dates: EEBEER:
Weighted
average Gross Net
expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount  allowance amount
Trade receivables mEEH
EoRWER BHERE BEREE FERE BREFE
% HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
% FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2021 R=B=-
t=ZA=+-H
Not past due £ 3l - 28 - 28
Less than 31 days past due  ®HVR31H 0.22% 32,785 (74) 32,711
31-120 days past due AH31E120H 0.31% 45,757 (146) 45,611
121-180 days past due #E1212180H 18% 7,419 (1,330) 6,089
Overdue 180 days B H180H 95% 2,634 (2,493) 141
88,623 (4,403) 84,580
On individually basis &R &% 100% 3,545 (3,545) -
92,168 (7,588) 84,580
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

34. EWMIAWm

(b)

TREREEEREREE (8)

(i) 1EEEEREEFGE)

(Continued)
Weighted
average Gross Net
expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
Trade receivables MEFY
EZEBER BHERX BEEE BRAHE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FHET FHET FET
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-EH
t=A=1-H
Not past due ma - 46,487 - 46,487
Less than 31 days past due ~ #HI D> R31H 26% 4,889 (1,266) 3,623
31-120 days past due BE31E1208 - 348 = 348
121-180 days past due #E121£180H - 1,182 (592) 590
Overdue 180 days #HI180H 50% 1,478 (767) 71
52% 54,384 (2,625) 51,759
On individually basis {8 Bl B4 100% 3,545 (3,545) =
57,929 (6,170) 51,759
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

34. TEMIH®@

(b)

tREREEEEREE (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) 1EEEEREEFGE)
(Continued)
The Group recognised ECL for contract 7N & B AR i FE WBR A D
assets and other receivables based on FRAREEHNEERE
the internal credit rating of receivables as HEKESRNEREES
follows: BRRAT:
Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
Contract assets loss rate amount  allowance amount
EREE BHERE BEREE FERE BREFE
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
% FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2021 RZB=-F
+=RA=tH
Low risk KRR 0.09% 5,271 (5) 5,266
As at 31 December 2020 R-BE-EE
T=A=tH
Low risk gl - 3,052 - 3,052
Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
Other receivables loss rate amount  allowance amount
Hitt W R RHEEE BEHRE FERE BHEFE
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
% FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZB=—-%
+T=ZA=+H
Low risk KRB 1.22% 114,016 (1,389) 112,627
As at 31 December 2020 R-Z-ZF
+=A=+H
Low risk iYENCA - 17,525 - 17,525

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. €I AW
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) =2REKREEEERBER (&)
policies (Continued)
(ii) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) 1EEEEREEFGE)
(Continued)
The following tables show the movement TRHEINEBREFERE
in allowance for credit losses that has HEEBRB (BHE) X
been recognised for trade and other 122 ATEHEEBEERE
receivables and contracts assets under 5 K B b e W BR B R &Y
the lifetime ECL (simplified approach) or EEBEREZY-
12-month ECL.
Lifetime ECL
(simplified
Trade receivables approach)
FEBES
BFEE#A
B 5 EWERR (L7 %)
HK$'000
FHEIT
As at 1 January 2020 RZE_EF—H—H 4,304
Allowance recognised REZEROEE
in profit or loss 1,866

As at 31 December 2020 and R-ZE-=F

F+-A=+—-HE

1 January 2021 —E-—%9—H—H 6,170
Allowance recognised RERERAEE

in profit or loss 1,418
As at 31 December 2021 RZE=Z—F+=-HA=+—H 7,588

The Group writes off a trade receivable
when there is information indicating that
the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been
placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or when
the trade receivables are over two years
past due, whichever occurs earlier. The
Group may take legal action against the
debtors to recover the amount due.

EAEERBTEBARBA
B E W5 & B3 E B R
A gE M @ SRIE B (B0 &
BADBRIEAKER
FF o 3 fid B 5 18 W R 518
HEAMFER ABE#
EERE) AEESMH
BHRWER AEET
HEBARBOERITH N
Yo 13 2 B 5008
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34.

186

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and (b)

policies (Continued)

34. E@WMIAmW

cHEREEBERBER (&)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) 1EEEEREEFGE)
(Continued)
12-month
Other receivables ECL
1218 B A 58
H b P& U BR X FEEE
FHET
As at 1 January 2020, RZZ_TF—-H—8H-
31 December 2020, —EEF+-A=+—8"
1 January 2021 —Z-_—%—H—H -
Allowance recognised RES BRI EE
in profit or loss 1,389
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+=-H=+—H 1,389
Lifetime ECL
(simplified
Contract assets approach)
FHEBES
FEE#A
EHNEE (e %)
HK$'000
FHEIT
As at 1 January 2020, R-_ZE_TF—HA—QH-
31 December 2020, —ZE-ZTF+-_A=+—8"
1 January 2021 —E-_—F—H—H -
Allowance recognised RIER TR EE
in profit or loss 5
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—4F+=-A=+—8H 5

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T - —F+-_A=+—HBILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. &€@MIAEm
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) 2REMBEBEEEREE®)
policies (Continued)
(iii)  Liquidity risk (i) FHEELEE
The Group’s liquidity position is RARIEEESBERR
monitored closely by the management f?iiﬁ?&ﬁﬁﬁf\}fi7k$
of the Company by maintaining an RUERAEE 2 RBE
adequate level of bank balances and SHR-T R AE
cash. The following table details the FELT _’il_% MmMEEZHGBRE
Group’s remaining contractual maturity HWH-ZRTDBEBEARESE
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. AT X H ZEFHEHBRS
The table has been drawn up based on BB 15 ZARBRBERE
the undiscounted cash flows of financial =
liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay.
Weighted
average Within More than More than Total
effective one year 1yearbut  2yearshbut  contractual
interest oron less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
rate demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
mEFEH -£R RBEF BiB2E  AHRER
BRAIE FRER B no% BHRFE  BEHAE REE
HKS 000 HKS000 HK$1000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000
FET FEL FET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE--£+-A=+-H
Trade and other payables ~ E 5 REMEMER N/A
A 136,333 = = = 136,333
Bank and other borrowings /T R E &5k 6% 51,675 - - - 51,675
188,008 7 o o 188,008
In addition, the maturity profile of the Group’s lease liabilities is as follows:
JoN AEERESENBRRMT:
Lease liabities HAEAE 2.89% 5,524 18,638 = 24,162 21,055
Asat 31 December 2020  HZZT=FE+-F=1-A
Trade and other payables 5 R E {183k N/A
Byl 77,340 = = = 77,340
In addition, the maturity profile of the Group’s lease liabilties is as follows:
o AEBREREMIEKAWT:
Lease liabilties HEAR 2.89% 335 048 = 1283 1217
(c)  Fair value (c) 2AFE
The fair values of financial assets and financial cHEENEBREBEZATE
liabilities are determined in accordance with BEERMBEREREST A
generally accepted pricing models based on RIE T%*E’W‘EXE ®
discounted cash flow analysis.
The directors of the Company consider that ARAIEZRR Nixa B R
the carrying amounts of financial assets and FKNIREHEKATRCERMEE
financial liabilities recorded at amortised FemeaBErsrRmEEERNFE
cost in the consolidated financial statements & o

approximate their fair values.
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35.

188

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BEBAERS

During the current year, the Group entered into the KEEAR K& £ B8 Bk 5 #E 1T T 7|

following transactions with related parties: R :

Name Nature of transactions 2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF

% RHME HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FHET
Billion Mass Limited Rental paid by the Group N/A 224
(“Billion Mass”) (note 1)
BlEEER AR ([E#E]) rEEENES ~EA
(M$&E1)
PT Shenzhen (note 2) Cost of service rendered paid by the 1,708 138
Group

RERIN (P EE2) REED R ERBEKA

PT Shenzhen (note 2) Rental paid by the Group 862 1,930

HEREY (FFEE2) AEBEMNAS

Note 1: Mr. Pang Kuo-Shi and Mr. Wong Chun, former directors Mgt RRRRMESER /SR REERELE R

and/or shareholders of the Company, together hold 100%
controlling interest in Billion Mass. Mr. Pang Kuo-Shi resigned
on 5 December 2019 and Mr. Wong Chun resigned his
position of non-executive director on 30 June 2020.

BERAEARF ARSI ERES-
BRBEEAR_ZT-NF+_ARAH
ERERBEER-_ZT_TFA=+H
BHESERITE R -

Note 2: Mr. Wang Li Feng, a director and/or a shareholder of the HiaFe : RRRIEERSRETBIELERE
Company has an indirect equity interest of 27.6% in PT FERBERYI27.6%AXHE -
Shenzhen.
The remuneration of directors of the Company and AR EENEREEEREMKERTE
other members of key management during the year ECEA L UNNE
was as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Short-term benefits EHEIREF = =
Post-employment benefits BB 212 A 6,294 4,466
6,294 4,466

China United Venture Investment Limited HEHSIREGR A T
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. KMIBARFE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at R—ZEBE-Z—ER_ZE_ZTE+=A
31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: =+ —HZARAEENBRRFE®R
T
Paid up
Place of and issued
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of nominal value of
Form of registration/ registered issued share capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary business structure operation capital held by the Company Principal activity
FRAL/ER/ BER ARRAFBZBRT
MEAR AR EBRBEA EEBY BRBA/ERER RAEE/ ERERLH TEXH
Direct Indirect
%1 B
2021 2020 2021 2020
CEC-F_R-RECRC-F CR-%%
Asia-Link Technology Limited limited liability British Virgin Islands/  US$50,000 Ordinary - = 100% 100%  Trading of connectivity products
company Taiwan shares mainly for computers and
peripheral products in the USA,
investment holding
THHRERAR BREFARA RBEMAEHS/AE 50,0005 EAMR EXHEETERANERRARR
BER EXERRRERR
Dongguan Glory Mark Electronic  limited liability PRC HK$15,100,000 Paid - - 100% 100%  Manufacture of connectivity
Co., Ltd. (Note b) company up registered capital products mainly for computers
and peripheral products
REREETHERAR (Mib) AREARA HE 15,100,000 T2 SETERANERRAEREER
H &R LERER
Glory Mark Electronic Limited limited liability British Virgin Islands/  US$50,000 Ordlinary - = 100% 100%  Trading of connectivity products
(Note a) company Taiwan shares mainly for computers and
peripheral products in South
East Asia
BEEFERAR (Mia) BRERAR EBEMARES/AE 50,0005 ERMK EREGEETEANERRAR
REEMENER
Glory Mark Electronic Limited limited liability Samoa/Taiwan US$50,000 Ordinary - - 100% 100%  Trading of connectivity products
company shares mainly for computers and
peripheral products
BEEFERAA BRERAR EETG/AE 50,0005 70 & i@k BEEIERNEMRARREER
ZEBER
Glory Mark International limited liability British Virgin Islands/  US$400 Ordinary 100% 100% - - Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited company Hong Kong shares
BEEE (SE)FRAF AREAAR REEBRES/EE J00ETLAR REER
Dongguan Asia-Link (Note d) limited liability PRC HK$62,260,000 Paid d - - 100%  Manufacture of connectivity
company up registered capital products mainly for computers
and peripheral products
R (Mid) ARAERR HE 62,260,007 L&l B RETEANERRAERBER
HftER ZERER
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36.
(Continued)

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

36. MKBAAFE @

Paid up
Place of and issued
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of nominal value of
Form of registration/ registered issued share capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary business structure operation capital held by the Company Principal activity
EMRL/ 2R/ BRTR KAFMBEZERT
WEARER EBARYR EEE BRBA/ERER RAEE/ ERERLH TERE
Direct Indirect
EE B
2021 2020 2021 2020
R _T_BECBC-F _T_FF
Asia-Link (Fogang) Electronic limited liability PRC US$3,150,000 Paid up - - 100% 100%  Manufacture of connectivity
Limited company registered capital products mainly for computers
and peripheral products
(R EFERAR AREHAR PE 3,150,000 T4 & HEIERNERRARREER
fi&x ERER
Dongguan Glory Mark and limited liability PRC HK$24,500,000 - - 100% 100%  Manufacture of connectivity
Asia-Link Technology Co., Ltd. company Paid up registered products mainly for computers
(Note c) capital and peripheral products
REBETHRNERARF BREEARA PE 24,500,000/ T4 & HETEANERRAEREER
(G AfER ERER
Dongguan Glory Mark and limited liability PRC HK$1,223,100 - - 100% 100%  Manufacture of connectivity
Asia Link Electronic Co., Ltd company products mainly for computers
(Note €) and peripheral products
Dongguan Glory Mark and BREAAR e 1,223,100/ T HETERANERLARRBER
Asia Link Electronic Co., Ltd ZERER
GES)
PT Design International limited liability British Virgin Islands/  US$50,000 Ordinary 100% 100% - - Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited company Hong Kong shares
HERERERERAR BREERHA REEBRES/EH 50000 LER RERR
Pt Design (QH) Limited limited liability PRC HK$2,000,000 Paid - - 100% 100%  Provision of comprehensive
company up registered capital architectural service
AEmERG CRNERRA  AREARA HE 2,000,000/ L& R & REZARERK
fi&x
PT Design International limited liability Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - = 100% 100%  Investment holding and provision
company Ordinary shares of comprehensive architectural
service
HERER BREFAR i 1,000,000 T & @K% REZRRRELARERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T - —F+-_A=+—HBILFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The subsidiary had established a branch, namely Glory
Mark Electronic Limited — Taiwan Branch (the “GME
Branch”) in Taiwan. The GME Branch is engaged in trading
of connectivity products mainly for computers and peripheral
products.

The shares of the subsidiary were fully pledged as security
for the loan facility of RMB29,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$35,000,000) obtained from an independent
third party during the year. The Group has not drawn any loan
as at 31 December 2020.

The subsidiary was set up in 3 August 2020.

The subsidiary was disposed in 22 October 2021.

The subsidiary was set up in 28 December 2020.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

e PN D

(@ ZHBARNEERYL —BH A8 Eﬂ
EBEETHERAAREGES AR ([EBIE
FHRA]) - BERETFHDA Q%EE
FTERREMEAEREEMZERE

=]
an °

i

(b) )‘J’éiwwgﬂaﬁa’aﬂﬁf’ﬂ&%ﬁﬁfﬁ#f’&
AR -—BBUE=TESNERLEA
R #29,000,0007T ($E“‘EA4735,000,000
BLT)NER-BE-_F-_ZTF+_-A
=t— B AEELREREMER-

(©) ZHBARN-ZE=_FFN\A=AKTZ-

(d) ZMBATR -_ZE-_—F+A=-+=H
& o

(e) ZMBRARAR-_E_TFE+_A-F+N
B~

RERSKF N ERERE BERNE QA
BITEMEHES -
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37. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 37. XA TRMBESR

The financial information of the Company as at 31 AKRARRZBEZ—FR-ZZ-_FTF+=
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: A=+—HBMEBEERNT:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ok FETT FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMEEE
Right-of-use asset EREEE = 68
Unlisted investment RETBARIMIELTIRE
in subsidiaries a 34,510 34,510
34,510 34,578
CURRENT ASSETS mENE E
Other receivables H b & IR 5X 3,070 3,656
Amount due from e Uy — 5 BE 3 2 m) 508
a related company b 12 10
Amounts due from subsidiaries J& W i B A &) B b 16,551 =
Bank balances and cash IRITHB AR 44 5,844
19,677 9,510
CURRENT LIABILITIES mBBEE
Other payables H i & BR 3K 9,262 3,883
Amounts due to subsidiaries X NGIE ] b = 38,252
Lease liability HEBE - 69
Bank and other borrowings R1T & H A & 15,214 =
24,476 42,204
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEFE (4,799) (32,694)
NET ASSETS BEEFE 29,711 1,884
CAPITAL AND RESERVE & A8 K {5 4
Share capital [N 7,040 7,040
Reserves 1 G 22,671 (5,156)
TOTAL EQUITY R EE 29,711 1,884
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(@)

Unlisted investment in subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2021, investments
in subsidiaries are carried at cost of
HK$34,510,000 (2020: HK$34,510,000). No
impairment losses was recognised for the year
(2020: Nil).

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Movements in the Company’s reserves are as
follows:

37.

RAFHBER @

(a) RHBRARNIFELHTERSE
R—ZE-_—F+_A=+—
B RHERAMIEERNKA

34,510,000 T AR (ZE =&
£ :34,510,000/ 7T) ° & A #
ERABEEBER(ZZ 2T F:
fm) o

b) ZEFEEER 2ZENEARE
KB R

H,
T

& = °©

) ARFFEEHESHIOT:

(Accumulated

losses)/
Share Retained
premium profits Total
(RER) /
R4 5E REEF @
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 RZZE=-T5—-HA—H - (518) (518)
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FAEERZHEM T A5
expense for the year - (10,076) (10,076)
Issue of new shares BImRn 5,438 = 5,438
At 31 December 2020 N_E_TF
+-A=+—"H 5,438 (10,594) (5,156)
Profit and total comprehensive i # I 2 T Wiz 4258
income for the year - 27,827 27,827
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—F
+=ZA=+-H 5,438 17,233 22,671
Note: Kiat -

On 3 June 2020, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing
agent placed 64,000,000 placing shares at the placing
price of a HK$0.1 per placing share to certain independent
placees. The net proceeds from the subscription, net of
related issued costs and expenses.

R-ZE-_ZTFENA=ZH AQaHEHEE
RIBFTVEEHE Bl BREREIEER
EEERESRMD0.1BITAE T8I
fid A B 64,000,0000% AL & f% 15 - 52 B8 AT
BRIEFEE R HEBETRARAS
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38.

194

NOTES SUPPORTING THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

38. SMEBRERERHFE

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing METHELEEBYHER
activities
Bank and
other Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
BITR
Hith & HEARE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHETT FHET FHET
At 1 January 2020 R_ZE-_FF—H—H - 814 814
Changes from financing BEEESRSREL S :
cash flows:
Repayment of principal HEaGEAESBIER
portion of lease liabilities - (1,288) (1,288)
Interest paid for leases ENEERNE - (49) (49)
- (1,337) (1,337)
Other changes: E b :
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEBRE - 49 49
New lease recognised (Note) &WERNIEE (H#1:) - 2,091 2,091
Lease modification MEEH - (397) (397)
Exchange realignment E 5 % - (3) 3
At 31 December 2020 M_TE_FTF
+_Hf+ A = 1,217 1,217
Changes from financing REGEERSRELE):
cash flows:
New borrowings raised MEEZER 51,675 - 51,675
Interest paid for borrowings & 1~ f& 7 F| & (1,053) = (1,053)
Repayment of principal HEBBELRESHMHENR
portion of lease liabilities - (2,522) (2,522)
Interest paid for leases BEREEFE - (839) (839)
50,622 (3,361) 47,261
Other changes: H b -
Interest on bank and fETT&,ﬁ\ﬁMﬁ BB
other borrowing 1,053 - 1,053
Interest on lease liabilities HERERNE - 839 839
New lease recognised (Note) #EWERNIEE (#1:) = 22,069 22,069
Exchange realignment & 5 38 B - 291 291
At 31 December 2021 NZEBE=-—4F
+TZRA=+—
51,675 21,055 72,730
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into new lease
agreements for the use of office premises. On the
lease commencement, the Group recognised right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities in the same amount of
approximately HK$21,855,000 (2020: HK$2,091,000).

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(a) On 4 March 2022, the Group, through its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, acquired (i) the
entire issued share capital of State Venture
Capital Limited United Resources (¥7# 1% &
RAEMRAR]); and (i) 70% of the issued share
capital of State Innovation Capital Limited
FERRIEKRARAAF) from China United
Resources Group Limited (FTEEBEEAR A
7)) at a nominal consideration.

Details of the acquisition of the subsidiaries are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated
on 4 March 2022.

(b) On 4 April 2022, Goldstone Investment
Management Limited, as the lender (the
“Lender”), entered into two loan agreements
(the “First Loan Agreement” and the “Second
Loan Agreement”, collectively, the “Loan
Agreements”) with State Venture Capital Limited
as the first borrower (the “First Borrower”)
and State Innovation Capital Limited as the
second borrower (the “Second Borrower”,
collectively, the “Borrowers” or each the
“Borrower”), respectively. Each of the Borrowers
become a subsidiary of the Group since the
acquisition is completed on 4 March 2022.
The loan amount with the First Borrower and
the Second Borrower are HK$60,000,000 and
HK$18,000,000 with an interest rate 2% per
annum respectively.

Details of the above borrowings are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated on 13
May 2022.

39.

40.

FEHFRERS

FA AEERERABRAEYWET LT
HEWZ RNHEERKLE AEEER
HRSENEAREEREEEBREDY
21,855,000/ 7L (—ZT == 4 : 2,091,000
BIT) °

BREMRER

(a) R-_E-_—F=ANH AEEE
BEZENBRAAIARIEENR
BB ERIEEAER QAN
2EHDEITRA: KB FERR
ESEARARIWEBHERBIEAR
BREAAM70%E ZEITIA -

FRAWEZSHBRARNFEBH
RARBIBHA-_ZT-_—_F=A
MERAE-

(b) RZE-_—_FWUWAMNA  £AHKE
ERARAR (IEAERAN) ([E
HRAD DR EFERKEAFR
2aEl(EBE—BRA) ([F—
BRADEFERRELAFR A
Al (tEBSE B A) (15218
FAD) (GEBIEZFRAIHEZEAE
[ERADTIMDERE ([5
—EZME] R[FE_HERH
Z| BBIEZXBZE]) -BKRE
EERN T F=ZAWEATK
BEFRASERBAEENH
BRA - F—ERARE-_EX
AMER £ %5 5l A60,000,000
7 7T 518,000,000/ 7T » FFI X A&
2% e

FRALAEBEENFBHNARQF
B A -_ZT-_—_FRA+=HH

NI
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Financial Summary

MBHE

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t-HLEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
S 3 ZF-N\E —T-hE “T-TF “B--F
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FAT
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 377,118 388,770 347,973 292,748 339,255
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (BR) 16,763 24,434 11,870 (5,122) (53,434)
Profit/(loss) for the year AT ATEBER
attributable to: &R/ (BR)
Owners of the Company LUNGIEZ=DN 17,004 24,456 12,255 (4,576) 53,697
Non-controling interests FERER 241) (22) (385) (546) (263)
16,763 24,434 11,870 (5,122) (53,434)
At 31 December
BW+t=A=t+-8
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“E—tfF —E-N\E =y K23 —Z-%F —BC-f
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAT FAET FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEBRE 264,714 274,869 256,445 258,022 417,114
Total liabilties BRERE (158,376) 154,389) (126,773) 124,833 244,006
Shareholders’ funds BEES 106,338 120,480 129,672 133,189 173,108
Shareholders’ funds attributable to: UTATEREREES:
Owners of the Company AREEBA 105,876 120,040 129,617 133,680 173,862
Non-controling interests ErERER 462 440 55 (491) (754)
106,338 120,480 129,672 133,189 173,108
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